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Letter to Shareholders:

iscal 2008 was another very strong year for MSC Industrial Direct. Since our

founding more than 65 years ago, MSC has been focused on growth,
innovation and customer service. In fiscal 2008, we continued to build upon
that foundation, further strengthening our partnerships with customers and
suppliers, executing on our plan to gain market share and improving our
financial performance.

Our progress in fiscal 2008 was made even as the ecoromic environment
progressively deteriorated. Qur work over the past several years has better
prepared MSC for challenging economic environments; we are an even stronger
company today and we will leverage that strength to succeed in the current
economic environment. In addition, as in past cycles, the current economic
slowdown provides us with the opportunity to gain market share from our less
well-capitalized competitors whao cannot offer aur compelling combination of
product breadth, customer service and financial strength.

Strong Financial Performance

Fisca) 2008 saw us continue to generate excellent financial performance.
Net sales for the year were $1.78 billion, an increase of 7.5%, based on average
daily sales, from net sales of $1.63 billion in fiscal 2007, Growth during the year
was achieved despite five fewer business days in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal
2007. Increased sales, improved cost management and the successful brand
integration of J&L America, Inc. ("JEL"), which was acquired in June 2008,
enabled us to increase operating margin to 18.0% of net sales from 17.2% of
net sales in fiscal 2007. Net income for fiscal 2008 grew by 12.8% to $196.2
million, compared to net income of $173.9 million in fiscal 2007; and diluted
earnings per share increased 17.4% to $3.04 compared to $2.59 per diluted
share in fiscal 2007.

MSC continues to operate from a position of financial strength. We have a
very liquid, under-leveraged balance sheet, and in fiscal 2008 produced
consolidated free cash flow of $197.7 million {consolidated free cash flow is
defined as net cash provided by operating activities less expenditures for
praperty, plant and equipment). We were able to leverage this strong free cash
flow to continue building value, for our shareholders, both through continued
strategic investments in our business and the return of cash. In fiscal 2008, we
distributed $47.6 million to MSC shareholders through our regular quarterty
cash dividend, and increased the dividend to $0.20 from $0.18 per quarter
during the year. In addition, we continued MSC's stock repurchase plan,
purchasing a total of 4.6 million shares of our stock in fiscal 2008 for a total
price of $187.2 million.

Investing for the Future

In fiscal 2008, we continued to execute on our strategic investments
program to improve our financial performance and further erhance services
for customers. We achieved our goals for cost savings associated with the
integration of J&L, and have introduced lean initiatives to improve operating
efficiencies and future profitability. Our investments in MSC's West Coast
expansion have gone as planned, and we now have expanded exposure to a
new, robust market for our services. We also have a larger national field sales
force, which we grew by 12% during the year and now stands at more than
900 of the best associates in the business. We will continue to opportunistically
seek investments in outstanding field sales peopte to support future growth.

Beyond our geographic diversification, we continued to diversify our
customer base. During the year, we grew our presence in the nen-manufacturing
market and made solid progress in our Large Account Customer program as
these customers recognized MSC's combination of quality, value and ability to
protect their supply chains in a chaltenging economic environment.

In addition, we further enhanced our services to customers by bringing
together the best that MSC and J&L have to offer to ensure that our customers

Mitchell Jacobson

have access to the products they want, when they want them. We combined &L
Industrial Supply's metalworking business with MSC to create MSCH&L
Metalworking, fulfilling our goal of further enhancing our position as a leading
metalworking resource. We also launched our 2008 Electric Motor Catalog, with
a substantial number of new brands and new product categories.

Fiscal 2009 and Beyond

As we enter fiscal 2008, we are experiencing challenging times as the credit
market crisis and slowing economy affects everyone. However, MSC is well
prepared to manage through the current challenges and continues to build upon
our strong foundation. In the new year, we will continue to execute our core
strategy, which is rooted in innovation and providing the best possible service
and value praposition to cur customers.

In September 2008, we implemented one of the most revolutionary service
level enhancements in our history by providing next-day detivery to all customers
in the contiguous United States, with extended ordering times, Essentially, MSC
is now the one and only telephone call a customer needs to make.

This service enhancement will help our current customers quickly and
efficiently receive the products they need next day, regardless of their location,
It also provides us with a significant competitive advantage that will also help us
gain market share as companies look to reduce their inventory levels and avoid
the potential risks to their business involved in using smaller, less well-capitalized
regional distributors that are unable to provide the same level of availability.

We will continue building upon the progress we have made in strategic
initiatives such as our West Coast expansion and Large Account Customer
program. Our market diversification strategy will also continue as we further
penetrate or establish 3 presence in promising new vertical markets, At the same
time, we will pursue opportunistic investments that further our strategic goals
and enhance our value proposition, while remaining focused on controlling
expenses and maintaining our strong balance sheet, providing us with the
liquidity to succeed in the current economic environment.

We believe that we are at "the start of something big,” which is the theme
that we used this year for rolling out and coramunicating our long-term strategic
plan to our associates. We enter fiscal 2009 as a stronger company with a group
of more diversified customers, a vibrant Large Account Customer program, an
expanded set of products, a service offering second to none and an industry-
best team of well-trained, highly motivated associates, who are ready to support
our customers' needs. While the near-term marketplace may be a challenge, we
have built a foundation for success and are well positioned for the future.

On behalf of our Board of Directors and the management team, we want
to thank our associates, customers, supplier partners and shareholders for their
loyalty and continued support. All of us at MSC remain committed to driving
future growth in shareholder value,
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Mitchell Jacobson
Chairman of the Board
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David Sandler
President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART 1.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for historical information contained herein, certain matters included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K are, or may be deemed to be forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. The
words “will,” “may,” “designed to,” “believe,” “should,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,”
“estimate” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
of this annual report. These forward-looking statements are contained principally under Item 1,
“Business,” and under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” Because these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties,
actual results could differ materially from the expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in
the forward-looking statements include those described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” In
addition, new risks emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such
risk factors or to assess the impact of such risk factors on our business. Given these risks and
uncertainties, the reader should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. We
undertake no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent
events or circumstances.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

The information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the effect of the
acquisition of J&L, a former subsidiary of Kennametal, Inc. The acquisition has been accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations. The financial results of J&L are included in the
consolidated financial results in the balance sheet as of the fiscal year ended September 1, 2007 and
thereafter, and in the consolidated statements of income as of the acquisition date which was June 8,
2006.

On September 1, 2008, we completed the brand integration of the J&L business and launched the
MSC/J&L Metalworking brand. However, operating systems were integrated during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2007. As a result, certain performance measurements can only be calculated on a consolidated
basis as of the fourth quarter period. Where applicable we have noted that these measurements arc as
of the fourth quarter. The J&L location in Wednesbury, United Kingdom (“J&L UXK.”) is excluded
from certain measurements, unless otherwise noted, as these measurements are not relevant to its
business model. For fiscal 2008, J&L UK. represented less than 3% of the Company’s consolidated net
sales.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “MSC,” the “Company,” “we,”
“our,” or “us”), a corporation incorporated in the State of New York in 1995, is one of the largest
direct marketers of a broad range of industrial products to industrial customers throughout the United
States. We distribute a full line of industrial products intended to satisfy our customers’ metalworking
and maintenance, repair and operations (“MRO”) supplies.

We offer approximately 590,000 stock-keeping units (“SKUs”) through our master catalogs, weekly,
monthly and quarterly specialty and promotional catalogs, newspapers and brochures and the Internet,
including our websites, MSCDirect.com, MSCJLMetalworking.com and Use-Enco.com (the “MSC




Websites”). Most of our products are carried in stock, and orders for these in-stock products are
typically fulfilled the day on which the order is received. Effective at the beginning of fiscal 2009, we
improved our service levels to customers in the contiguous United States. We now offer a nationwide
cutoff time of 8:00 PM Eastern time on qualifving orders, which will be delivered to the customer the
next day at no additional cost.

Our business strategy is to provide an integrated, lower cost solution to the purchasing,
management and administration of our customers’ MRO needs. We believe we add value to our
customers’ purchasing process by reducing their total costs for MRO supplies, taking into account both
the direct cost of products and the administrative, personnel and financial cost of obtaining and
maintaining MRO supplies. We reduce our customers’ costs for their MRO supplies in the following
manner:

* our extensive product offerings allow customers to reduce the administrative burden of dealing
with many suppliers for their MRO needs;

* we guarantee same-day shipping of our core business products, which enables our customers to
reduce their inventory investment and carrying costs;

* we consolidate multiple purchases into a single order, provide a single invoice relating to
multiple purchases over varying periods of time and offer direct shipments to specific
departments and personnel within a single facility or multiple facilities, allowing our customers
to reduce administrative paperwork, costs of shipping and personnel costs related to internal
distribution and purchase order management;

* we have extensive e-commerce abilities that enable our customers to lower their procurement
costs. This includes many features such as swift search and transaction abilities, access to
real-time inventory, customer specific pricing, workflow management tools, customized reporting
and other features. We can also interface directly with many purchasing portals such as ARIBA
and Perfect Commerce, in addition to ERP Procurement Solutions such as QOracle, SAP and
Infor (formerly known as Datastream); and

* we offer inventory management solutions with our Customer Managed Inventory (“CMI”) and
Vendor Managed Inventory (“VMI”) systems that can lower our customers’ inventory
investment, reduce sourcing costs and out of stock situations and increase business efficiency.
Orders generated through these inventory management solutions are integrated directly with
MSCDirect.com and many third party e-procurement software solutions.

Our customers include a wide range of purchasers of industrial supply products, from individual
machine shops to Fortune 1000 companies, to government agencies such as the General Services
Administration (“GSA”) and the United States Postal Service (“USPS”). Qur core business focuses on
selling relatively higher margin, lower volume products for which we had an average order size of
approximately $311 in fiscal 2008. We have approximately 371,000 active customers (companies that
have purchased at least one item during the past 12 months). Our customers select desired products
from MSC'’s various publications and the MSC Websites and place their orders by telephone, the
Internet, the MSC Websites and direct computer link or facsimile.

We operate primarily in the United States, with customers in all 50 States, through a network of
five customer fulfillment centers (four customer fulfillment centers are located within the United States
and one is located in the UK.} and 97 branch offices (96 branches are located within the United States
and one is located in the U.K.). MSC’s customer fulfillment centers are located near Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania; Atlanta, Georgia; Elkhart, Indiana; Reno, Nevada and Wednesbury, United Kingdom.
The strategic locations of MSC’s customer fulfillment centers allow for next day ground delivery via low
cost ground carriers in 39 States. Our experience has been that areas accessible by next day ground
delivery generate significantly greater sales than areas where next day delivery is not available. Effective




at the beginning of fiscal 2009, we improved our service levels to customers in the contiguous United
States. We now offer a nationwide cutoff time of 8:00 PM Eastern time on qualifying orders, which will
be delivered to the customer the next day at no additional cost,

Acquisitions

On June 8, 2006, we acquired, through our wholly owned subsidiary, MSC Acquisition Corp. VI,
all of the outstanding common stock of J&L, a former subsidiary of Kennametal, Inc. J&L provides
metalworking consumables, related products and related technical and supply chain-related productivity
services to small and medium-sized manufacturers in the United States and the United Kingdom.

In connection with the acquisition of J&L, Kennametal, Inc., J&L and the Company entered into
certain business arrangements, including: (a) a distributor agreement under which the Company and
J&I. have received an exclusive five-year national level distribution arrangement for Kennametal
branded products (within the United States), a non-exclusive distributorship in the United States for
other products and a non-exclusive distributorship for Kennametal branded and other products in the
U.K.; (b) a trademark license agreement which grants us an exclusive, royalty-free, right and license in
perpetuity for the use of the HERTEL trademark in the United States and United Kingdom, and
limited rights in Canada and other jurisdictions; (c) a private label agreement under which Kennametal
manufactures and supplies to the Company certain products under the HERTEL trademark; (d) certain
noncompetition arrangements; and (¢) an administrative services agreement which terminated on
June 30, 2007.

On September 1, 2008, we completed the brand integration of the J&L business and launched the
MSC/J&L Metalworking brand. The completion of the integration marks a very important milestone
for MSC, and the result is a customer experience that brings together the best that MSC and J&L have
to offer. This new brand reflects our continued commitment to both the expertise and services that the
former J&L customers depended on and our continued commitment in metalworking. It also speaks to
all of the added services and products that MSC offers. MSC/J&L Metalworking customers now have
the option of purchasing from our complete line of products through the MSC Big Book in addition to
the MSC/J&L Metalworking catalog.

Industry Overview

MSC operates in a large, fragmented industry characterized by multiple channels of distribution.
We believe that there are numerous small retailers, dealerships and distributors that supply a majority
of the market. The distribution channels in the industrial products market include retail outlets, small
distributorships, national, regional and local distributors, direct mail suppliers, large warehouse stores
and manufacturers’ own sales forces.

Almost every industrial, manufacturing and service business has an ongoing need for MRO
supplies. We believe that, except in the largest industrial plants, inventories for MRQ supplies generally
are not cffectively managed or monitored, resulting in higher purchasing costs and increased
administrative burdens. In addition, within larger facilities, such items are frequently stored in multiple
locations, resulting in excess inventories and duplicate purchase orders. MRO items are also frequently
purchased by multiple personnel in uneconomic quantities and a substantial portion of most facilities’
MRO supplies are “one-time purchases,” resulting in higher purchasing costs and time-consuming
administrative efforts by multiple plant personnel.

Based on industry estimates, we believe that the administrative costs associated with manually
placing a purchase order are approximately $100 per order. Awareness of these high costs and
purchasing inefficiencies has been driving large companies to streamline the purchasing process by
utilizing a limited number of suppliers which are able to provide a broad selection of products, prompt
delivery and superior customer service. Customized billing practices and report generation capabilities




tailored to customer objectives are also becoming increasingly important to customers seeking to reduce
costs, allowing such customers to significantly reduce the need for purchasing agents and administrative
personnel. We belicve that industry trends and economic pressures have caused customers to reduce
their supplier base and move toward more efficient cost saving models, such as those offered by
premier companies such as MSC.

Despite the inefficiencies of the traditional MRO purchasing process, long-standing relationships
with local retailers and distributors have generally perpetuated the status quo. Due to limited capital
availability, high operating cost structures and relatively small sales volumes, smaller suppliers to the
industrial market are experiencing increasing pressure to consolidate and curtail services and certain
product lines in order to remain competitive. Even large suppliers with extensive field sales forces are
finding it increasingly difficult to cost-effectively visit all buyers and provide the support necessary to
satisfy customer demands for control of costs and improved efficiency. We believe that the relative
inability of traditional distribution channels to respond to these changing industry dynamics has created
a continuing opportunity for the growth of hybrid business models with direct marketing and direct
sales organizations such as MSC. As a result of these dynamics, we have captured an increased share of
sales by providing lower total purchasing costs, broader product selection and a higher level of service
to our customers.

We believe that we provide a low cost solution to the purchasing inefficiencies and high costs
described above. Customers that purchase products from us will generally find that their total
purchasing costs, including shipping, inventory investment and carrying costs, internal distribution costs
and administrative inefficiencies are reduced. We try to achieve this through:

* consolidation of multiple sources of supply into fewer suppliers;

* consolidation of multiple purchase orders into a single purchase order;
* consolidation of multiple invoices into a single invoice;

» significant reduction in tracking of invoices;

+ significant reduction in stocking decisions;

* reduction of purchases for inventory; and

* e-commerce and e-procurement integration capabilities.

Business Strategy

Qur business strategy is to reduce our customers’ total cost of procurement for obtaining and
maintaining MRO supplies. The strategy includes the following key elements:

* broad selection of in-stock products, offering industry brand and private branded products;
¢ prompt response and éame-day shipping;

* superior, value-added customer service;

* competitive pricing;

* targeted direct mail marketing; and

* comrmitment to technological innovation.

Broad Selection of Products. We believe that our ability to offer customers a broad spectrum of
industry and private label brand name and generic MRO products and a “good-better-best” product
selection alternative has been critical to our success. We offer products with varying degrees of brand
name recognition, quality and price, thus permitting the customer to choose the appropriate product




based on cost, quality and the customer’s specific needs. Our customers are increasingly purchasing
from fewer suppliers to reduce the administrative burden of ordering from multiple sources. We offer
approximately 590,000 SKUs, most of which are generally in stock and available for immediate
shipment, and we aim to provide a broad range of merchandise in order to become our customers’
preferred supplier of MRO products.

Same-Day Shipping. We guarantee same-day shipping of our in stock products. This prompt
fulfillment and delivery allows customers to reduce the administrative burden of dealing with many
suppliers and reduces their inventory investment and carrying costs. We fulfill our same-day shipment
guarantee 99.99% of the time. Our experience has been that areas accessible by next day ground
delivery generate significantly greater sales than areas where next day delivery is not available. Effective
at the beginning of fiscal 2009, we improved our service levels to customers in the contiguous United
States. We now offer a nationwide cutoff time of 8:00 PM Eastern time on qualifying orders, which will
be delivered to the customer the next day at no additional cost.

Superior Customer Service. Customer service is a key element in becoming a customer’s preferred
provider of MRQ supplies. Our commitment to customer service is demonstrated .by. our investment in
sophisticated information systems and extensive training of our associates. Utilizing our proprietary
customer support software, MSC’s in-bound sales representatives implement the “one call does it all”
philosophy. In-bound sales representatives are able to inform customers on a real-time basis of the
availability of a product, recommend substitute products, verify credit information, receive special,
custom or manufacturer direct orders, cross-check inventory items using customer product codes
previously entered into our information systems and arrange technical assistance. We believe that our
simple, “one call does it all” philosophy of fulfilling all purchasing needs of a customer through highly-
trained customer service representatives, supported by our proprietary information systems, results in
greater efficiency for customers and increased customer satisfaction. To complement our customer
service, we seek to ease the administrative burdens on our customers by offering customized billing
services, customer savings reports and other customized report features, electronic data interchange
ordering, e-commerce capabilities, bulk discounts and stocking of specialty items specifically requested
by customers. We also offer our customers strong technical support solutions for their many industrial
needs.

Targeted Direct Mail Marketing Strategy. Qur primary tools for marketing and product reference
are our master catalogs used to showcase approximately 590,000 items. In fiscal 2008, our master
catalogs were supplemented by 120 specialty and promotional catalogs and brochures covering such
specialty areas as cutting tools, measuring instruments, tooling components, safety, material handling,
electrical, hand tools and other MRO categories. We use our database of companies and contacts, and
we also purchase mailing lists of prospective-customers, to target the distribution of these various
publications to specific individuals within an organization whose purchasing history or other criteria
suggest receptiveness to mailings of specific publication titles. The use of specialty and promotlonal
publications, which are produced in-house, has resulted in increased productivity through lower costs,
increased response rates and more efficient use of advertising space. MSC’s publication circulation
decreased to 26.9 million in fiscal 2008 from 30.2 million in fiscal 2007. The circulation volume and
number of publications decreased as part of an ongoing strategy to improve direct mail productivity
and increase overall return on advertising dollars spent.

Commitment to Technological Innovation. 'We take advantage of technological innovations to
support growth, improve customer service and to reduce our operating costs through more effective
buying practices, automated inventory replenishment and efficient order fulfillment operations. MSC’s
proprietary software tracks all of the SKUs (approximately 590,000) and enables the customer and the
sales representatives to determine the availability of products in stock on a real-time basis and to
evaluate alternative products and pricing. The MSC Websites contain a searchable on-line catalog with




electronic ordering capabilities designed to take advantage of the opportunities created by e-commerce.
The MSC Websites offer a broad array of products, services, workflow management tools and related
information to meet the needs of customers seeking to reduce process costs through e-commerce-
enabled solutions. Our information systems have been designed to enhance inventory management and
turnover, customer service and cost reduction for both MSC and our customers. In addition to internal
and customer information systems, we continually upgrade our distribution methods and systems to
improve productivity and efficiency. We also provide a comprehensive electronic data interchange
(“EDI") ordering system to support our customer based purchase order processing. We continue to
invest in inventory management solutions with our VMI and CMI programs which allows for automated
inventory replenishment by customers, thereby enabling the customer to lower their overall
procurement costs and maintain lower inventory levels.

Growth Strategy

Our goal is to become the preferred supplier of MRO supplies for businesses throughout the
United States. We intend to increase sales to existing customers and diversify our customer base by:

* expanding government and national account programs;

* expanding our direct sales force, increasing their productivity, and opening new branch locations;
* selectively pursuing strategic acquisitions;

* increasing sales from existing and generating new customers with various value-added programs;

* improving our product lines, including the addition of new products and private label
alternatives;

* improving our direct marketing programs;

* continually providing value-added solutions, including e-commerce and vendor managed
inventory to reduce our customer costs;

* enhancing our next day service model; and

* maintaining excellent customer support service.

Expand Government and National Account Programs. We have developed internal government and
national account programs to meet the specific needs of these types of customers. We believe that
significant growth opportunities exist within these segments and that they are an integral part of our
customer diversification program. Allocating resources to these segments will allow us to better support
these customers, expand our customer acquisition activities and is a key component of our overall
growth strategy.

Increasing the size and improving the productivity of our direct sales force. 'We believe that increasing
the size of our sales force, providing high levels of customer service and improving sales force
productivity can have a positive effect on our sales per customer. The focus is to enable our sales force
to spend more time with our customers and provide increased support during the MRO purchasing
process thereby capturing more of their MRO spend. In fiscal 2008, as part of our west coast expansion
strategy, we opened new branches near Salt Lake City, Utah; Portland, Oregon; and Seattle,
Washington. We believe that opening sales branches in the west coast is an opportunity to increase our
market share, and we will continue to do so. However, we will manage the timing of sales force
increases and branch openings based on economic conditions.




Selectively pursuing strategic acquisitions. The acquisition of J&L has played a significant role in
our recent growth. We opportunistically pursue strategic acquisitions that we believe will either expand
or complement our business in new or existing markets or further enhance the value and offerings we
are able to provide to our existing or future potential customers.

Increasing sales from existing customers and generating new customers with various value-added
programs. In order to increase sales to existing customers and generate new customers, we offer a
suite of value-added programs that reduce customers’ acquisition costs for MRO supplies. Value-added
programs include inventory management, electronic e-commerce, training, and workflow management
tools.

Increasing the number of product lines and productive SKUs. 'We believe that continuing to increase
the breadth and productivity of our product line is an effective method for increasing sales to current
customers and attracting new customers. By expanding the product lines and SKUs offered within
existing product categories, we seek to satisfy an increasing percentage of the supplies purchased by our
customers and to attract new customers. In order to provide a diverse product line and maintain profit
margins in our competitive market place, we have also sought out vendors to supply higher margin
generic and private label products. In fiscal 2008, in the MSC catalog, we added approximately 24,000
SKUs and removed approximately 30,000 SKUs. In fiscal 2009, in the MSC catalog distributed in
September 2008, we added approximately 20,000 new SKUs and removed approximately 15,000 SKUs.
We currently have approximately 590,000 SKUs in total. We generally add SKUs based on the value we
believe they will bring to our customers,

Improving our direct marketing programs. Through our marketing efforts we have accumulated an
extensive buyer database and industry expertise within specific markets. We utilize empirical
information from our marketing database to prospect for new customers and target the circulation of
our master catalogs to those most likely to purchase. We supplement our master catalogs with direct
mailings of specialty and promotional publications to further increase customer response and product
purchases. Industry specific expertise is used to target customer growth areas and focus sales and
marketing campaigns.

E-commerce capabilities. MSC’s Websites are a proprietary business-to-business horizontal
marketplace serving the industrial market, offering customers full access to all of the SKUs that we sell,
and are supported by a complete service model by the respective MSC company. All orders placed
online at MSCDirect.com are backed by our same-day shipping guarantee. The MSC Websites utilize
the same highly trained sales force and support services as MSC'’s traditional business, emphasizing
MSC’s values of placing customers’ needs first. The MSC Websites are available 24 hours a day, seven
days a week, providing real-time inventory availability, superior search capabilities, on-line bill payment,
delivery tracking status and a number of other enhancements, including work flow management tools.
The user-friendly search engine allows customers to search for SKUs by keyword, part description,
competitive part number, vendor number or brand. As part of our continued effort to improve our
e-commerce capabilities, we continually make enhancements to improve the customer’s experience. We
believe the MSC Websites are a key component of our strategy to reduce customers’ transaction costs
and internal requisition time. The MSC Websites also allow customers to control which members of
their staff are entitled to purchase products online, how much they are entitled to spend and which
members of their staff require secondary approval. The process is fully automated and integrated into
our operating systems. Most orders move directly from the customers’ desktop to our customer
fulfillment center floor, removing human error, reducing handling costs and speeding up the transaction
flow. MSC continues to evaluate the MSC Websites and solicit customer feedback, making on-going
improvements targeted at ensuring that they remain premier websites in our marketplace. The
marketing campaign of the MSC Websites continues to raise awareness and drive volume to the




websites. The MSC Websites’ consolidated revenue was approximately $476.5 million in fiscal 2008,
representing 26.8% of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2008.

E-procurement solution providers sell a suite of e-commerce products designed to meet the needs
of businesses secking reduced procurement costs and increased effectiveness of their MRO/direct
materials process by using Internet-enabled solutions. We have associations with many of these
providers, including Ariba, Perfect Commerce, Oracle, SAP, and Infor (formerly known as Datastream).
We continue to evaluate and expand our capabilities in these areas, as the needs of our customers grow
in these areas.

Enhancing our next day service model. Our experience has been that sales in areas accessible by
next day ground delivery are significantly greater than in areas with second day delivery. Effective at
the beginning of fiscal 2009, we improved our service levels to customers in the contiguous United
States. We now offer a nationwide cutoff time of 8:00 PM Eastern time on qualifying orders, which will
be delivered to the customer the next day at no additional cost.

Maintain excellent customer support service. Our goal is to anticipate a customer’s service needs.
We are continuing to proactively expand the services that we provide and respond and build programs
at customer requests. MSC’s “one call does it all” philosophy continues to be the cornerstone of our
service model even as the complexity of the needs of our customers continues to grow. This focus on
our customers’ needs provides a market differentiator, which enables us to retain existing customers
and to grow our customer base.

Products

We currently offer approximately 590,000 SKUs, representing a broad range of MRO products that
include cutting tools; measuring instruments; tooling components; metalworking products; fasteners; flat
stock; raw materials; abrasives; machinery hand and power tools; safety, janitorial; plumbing; material
handling; power transmission; and electrical supplies. We attribute a portion of our sales growth to the
large number of SKUs offered, which helps our customers reduce the number of suppliers they use to
meet their MRO needs. In this regard, we intend to continue to add new value-adding products to our
existing product categories. QOur offering of specific products from multiple manufacturers at different
price and quality levels, provides our customers a “good-better-best” product selection alternative. This
value proposition provides similar product offerings with varying degrees of brand recognition, quality
and price, which enables our customers to choose the appropriate product for a specific task on the
most cost-effective basis. MSC seeks to distinguish itself from its competition by offering name brand,
private label, and generic products as well as by offering significant depth in its core product lines,
while maintaining competitive pricing.

Our in-bound sales representatives and technical support associates are trained to assist customers
in making suitable cost-saving purchases. We believe this approach results in significant amounts of
repeat business and is an integral part of our strategy to reduce our customers’ industrial supply costs.

Including J&L U.K., we purchase substantially all of our products directly from approximately
3,000 suppliers. Kennametal, Inc., our largest supplier, accounted for approximately 7% of our total
purchases in fiscal 2008. In connection with the acquisition of J&L, Kennametal, Inc., J&L and the
Company entered into certain business arrangements, including a distributor agreement under which
the Company and J&L have received an exclusive five-year national level distribution arrangement for
Kennametal branded products (within the United States), a non-exclusive distributorship in the United
States for other products and a non-exclusive distributorship for Kennametal branded and other
products in the UK.
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Customer Fulfillment Centers

A significant number of our products are carried in stock. Approximately 83% of sales are fulfilled
from our customer fulfiilment centers or branch offices. Certain products, such as specialty or custom
items and some very large orders, are shipped directly from the manufacturer. Our customer fulfillment
centers are managed via computer-based SKU tracking systems and radio frequency devices that
facilitate the location of specific stock items to make the selection process more efficient. We have
invested significant resources in technology and automation to increase efficiency and reduce costs, and
continually monitor our order fulfillment process. We currently utilize five customer fulfillment centers
for product shipment. They are located near Harrisburg, Pennsylvania; Atlanta, Georgia; Elkhart,
Indiana; Reno, Nevada, and Wednesbury, United Kingdom.

Sales and Marketing

Our customers include a broad range of purchasers of industrial supply products, from individual
machine shops, to Fortune 1000 companies, to government agencies. Our core business focuses on
selling relatively higher margin, lower volume products, for which wé had an average order size of
approximately $311 in fiscal 2008. We market to small, medium and large companies in a wide range of
sectors, including but not limited to durable and non-durable goods manufacturing (which accounted
for a substantial portion of our revenue in fiscal 2008), education, government and health care. We also
have government and national account programs designed to address the needs of these customers.

One focus area for our sales force is the execution of contracts with federal, state, and local
governmental agencies and the procurement agencies of numerous individual States. We belicve that
expanding our business with governmental agencies better diversifics our customer mix. These national
relationships are for MRO products and are well matched to MSC’s product breadth and depth.
Federal government customers include military bases, veteran’s hospitals, federal correctional facilities,
Army Corps of Engineers facilities, and USPS. In addition to the individual state contracts that MSC
already has, or is currently pursuing, we are now pursuing a number of State cooperatives that present
MSC an opportunity to leverage a single relationship over numerous States and/or agencies.

We also plan to continue our successful strategy of growing national account sales through the
acquisition of new accounts and the penetration of existing accounts. The MSC value proposition is
consistent with the procurement strategies of large, Fortune 1000 corporations as they attempt to
reduce their supply base by partnering with companies that can serve their needs nationally and drive
costs out of their supply chain by using e-commerce and inventory management solutions such as
mscdirect.com and VMI/CMI. By adding national accounts, we are able to diversify into new customer
segments, strengthen our MRO product categories and acquire the scale that helps us achieve our
purchasing goals. We have identified hundreds of additional national account prospects and have given
our sales team tools to ensure we are targeting and implementing programs with the companies that
best fit the MSC model.

On September 1, 2008, we completed the brand integration of the J&L business and launched the
MSC/J&L Metalworking brand. The completion of the integration marks a very important milestone
for MSC, and the result is a customer experience that brings together the best that MSC and J&L have
to offer. This new brand reflects our continued commitment to both the expertise and services that the
former J&L customers depended on and our continued commitment in metalworking. It also speaks to
all of the added services and products that MSC offers. MSC/J&L Metalworking customers now have
the option of purchasing from our complete line of products through the MSC Big Book in addition to
the MSC/1&I. Metalworking catalog.

One of our subsidiaries also offers wholesalers and other distributors the ability to create their own
customized mail order catalog, by offering turnkey marketing programs and promotional mailers. Any
resulting orders are serviced directly by MSC, which stocks and ships the products under the customer’s
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program. Another division of MSC offers a line of lower priced products to the budget-criented
customer.

We have approximately 371,000 active customers (companies which have purchased at least once
during the past 12 months). Typically, a customer’s industrial supply purchases are managed by several
buyers responsible for different categories of products. We target these individual buyers within an
organization and distribute publications corresponding to the product categories for which such buyers
are responsible. We are able to implement this direct-marketing strategy because of the depth of
customer information contained in our information systems databases. OQur customers select desired
products from our various publications and the MSC Websites, and place their orders by telephone,
MSC Websites, e-procurement platforms or facsimile.

We have invested significant resources in developing an extensive customer and prospect database.
This database is a key component of our growth strategy. The customer and prospect database includes
detailed information, including company size, number of employees, industry, various demographic and
geographic characteristics and personal purchase histories (catalog preference, product preference,
ordering method, and order value). We believe that this variety and depth of information on our
customers and prospects offers us a significant competitive advantage in increasing sales to existing
customers and attracting new customers.

We rely on 909 (including J&L U.K.) in-bound sales representatives at our call centers, customer
fulfillment centers and branch offices, who are responsible for substantially all customer contacts and
order entries. These sales representatives are highly trained individuals who build relationships with
customers, assist customers in reducing costs, provide technical support, coordinate special orders and
shipments with vendors and update customer account profiles in our information systems databases.
MSC’s “one call does it ali” philosophy is predicated on the ability of the sales representative, utilizing
our information systems’ comprehensive databases as a resource, to respond effectively to the
customer’s needs. When a customer places a call to MSC, the sales representative taking the call has
immediate access to that customer’s company and specific buyer profile, as well as inventory levels by
customer fulfillment center on all of the SKUs offered by MSC. The customer’s profile includes
historical and current billing information, historical purchasing information and plant and industry
information.

MSC’s in-bound sales representatives at our call centers undergo an intensive two-week training
course, are required to attend regular on-site training seminars and workshops, and are monitored and
evaluated at regular intervals. Additionally, the sales representatives are divided into teams that are
evaluated monthly and monitored on a daily basis by team supervisors. Sales representatives receive
technical training regarding various products from vendors and in-house training specialists. We also
maintain a separate technical support group dedicated to answering specific customer inquiries and
assisting customers with the operation of products and finding low cost solutions to manufacturing
problems.

Our 912 (including J&L U.K\} direct sales representatives work out of the branches or call centers
and generate a significant portion of our sales. They are responsible for increasing sales per customer
and servicing existing customers. The sales representatives accomplish this by taking our product
offering, distribution capabilities, customer service models and value added programs directly to the
customer. These associates are the touch-point to the customer and provide the organization with
feedback on the competitive landscape and purchasing trends, which contributes to customer service
improvements.

Branch Offices

We currently operate 97 branch offices. There are 96 branch offices within the United States with
locations in 40 States, and one branch is located in the United Kingdom. We have experienced higher
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sales growth and market penetration in areas where we have established a branch office and believe
our branch offices are important to the success of our business strategy of obtaining and penetrating
new and existing accounts. During fiscal 2008, as part of our west coast expansion strategy, we opened
new branches near Salt Lake City, Utah; Portland, Oregon; and Seattle, Washington.

Publications

Our primary reference tool is our master catalogs, which are supported by specialty and
promotional catalogs and brochures. MSC produces two annual catalogs: the MSC Big Book, which
includes our complete line of products and the MSC/J&L Metalworking catalog. We use specialty and
promotional publications to target customers in specific areas, such as metal fabrication, facilities
management, safety and janitorial. We distribute specialty and promotional catalogs and brochures
based on information in our databases and purchased mailing lists to customers whose purchasing
history or profile suggests that they are most likely to purchase according to specific product categories
or product promotions. Consequently, specialty catalogs offer a more focused selection of products at a
lower catalog production cost and more efficient use of advertising space.

MSC’s in-house marketing staff designs and produces all of our catalogs and brochures. Each
publication contains photographs, detailed product descriptions and a toll-free telephone number and
website address to be used by customers to place a product order. In-house production helps reduce
overall expense and shortens production time, allowing us the flexibility to alter our product offerings
and pricing and refine our catalogs and brochures more quickly.

The number of pieces mailed has decreased from approximately 29.6 million in fiscal 2006 to
approximately 26.9 million in fiscal 2008. The circulation volume decreased as part of an ongoing
strategy to improve direct mail productivity and increase overall return on advertising dollars spent.
The number of publications increased as a result of the J&L acquisition in 2006.

Fiscal Years Ended
August 26, September 1, August 30,
2006

2007 2008
(52 weeks) (53 weeks) (52 weeks)
Number of publication titles. . .. ............. ... .. ..., 112 126 123
Number of publications mailed. . ... .................... 29,600,000 30,200,000 26,900,000

Customer Service

One of our goals is to make purchasing our products as convenient as possible. Since a majority of
customer orders are placed by telephone, the efficient handling of calls is an extremely important
aspect of our business. Order entry and fulfillment occurs at each of our branches and main call
centers, most of which are located at our customer fulfillment centers. Calls are received by customer
service phone representatives who utilize on-line terminals to enter customer orders into computerized
order processing systems. In general, our telephone ordering system is flexible and in the event of a
local or regional breakdown can be re-routed to alternative locations. When an order is entered into
the system, a credit check is performed; if the credit is approved, the order is generally electronically
transmitted to the customer fulfillment center closest to the customer where the order is shipped. We
believe that our relationships with all of our freight carriers are satisfactory. Customers are invoiced for
merchandise, shipping and handling promptly after shipment.

Information Systems

Our proprietary information systems allow centralized management of key functions, including
communication links between customer fulfillment centers, inventory and accounts receivable
management, purchasing, pricing, sales and distribution, and the preparation of daily operating control
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reports that provide concise and timely information regarding key aspects of our business. These
proprietary information systems enable us to ship to customers on a same-day basis, respond quickly to
order changes, provide a high level of customer service, achieve cost savings, deliver superior customer
service and manage our operations centrally. Our proprietary information systems are also a key
component of our e-commerce capabilities.

Most of our information systems operate over a wide area network and are real-time information
systems that allow each customer fulfillment center and branch office to share information and monitor
daily progress relating to sales activity, credit approval, inventory levels, stock balancing, vendor returns,
order fulfillment and other measures of performance. We maintain a sophisticated buying and inventory
management system that monitors substantially all of our SKUs and automatically purchases inventory
from vendors for replenishment based on projected customer ordering models. We also maintain an
EDI purchasing program with our vendors with the objective of allowing us to place orders more
efficiently, reduce order cycle processing time, and increase the accuracy of orders placed.

In addition to developing the proprietary computer software programs for use in the customer
service and distribution operations, we also provide a comprehensive EDI and an Extensible Markup
Language (“XML”) ordering system to support our customer based purchase order processing. We
have developed a Windows®-based CD-ROM electronic catalog package and provide product
information and ordering capabilities on the Internet. MSC also supports a proprietary hardware and
software platform in support of its VMI initiative which allows customers to integrate scanner-
accumulated orders directly into our Sales Order Entry system. Our CMI program allows our customers
to simply and effectively replenish inventory, by submitting orders directly to our website, Our VMI
and CMI capabilities function directly as front-end ordering systems for our E-portal based customers.

We run our systems on an IBM iScries platform and utilize disaster recovery techniques and
procedures, which we believe are adequate to fulfill our needs and are consistent with this type of
equipment. We believe that planned enhancements and upgrades to the next generation of our existing
operating platforms will be sufficient to sustain our present operations and our anticipated growth for
the foreseeable future.

Competition

The MRO supply industry is a large, fragmented industry that is highly competitive. We face
competition from traditional channels of distribution such as retail outlets, small dealerships, regional
or national distributors utilizing direct sales forces, manufacturers of MRO supplies, large warchouse
stores and larger direct mail distributors. We believe that sales of MRO supplies will become more
concentrated over the next few years, which may make the industry more competitive. Our competitors
challenge us with a greater variety of product offerings, financial resources, services or a combination .
of all of these factors. In the industrial products market, customer purchasing decisions are primarily
based on one or more of the following criteria: price, product selection, product availability, level of
service and convenience. We believe we compete effectively on all such criteria.

Seasonality
We generally experience slightly lower sales volumes during the summer months (our fourth fiscal
quarter) as a result of our industrial customers’ plant shutdowns during this period.

Associates

As of August 30, 2008, we employed 4,261 associates, including 4,101 full-time and 160 part-time
associates. No associate is represented by a labor union. We consider our relationships with associates
to be good and have experienced no work stoppages.
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Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, and other reports and documents with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™). The public may read and copy any materials we file with the
SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at Station Place, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.
The address of that website is hntp:/fwww.sec.gov.

The Company’s Internet address is htp://www.mscdirect.com. We make available on or through our
investor relations page on our website, free of charge, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and beneficial ownership reports on Forms 3, 4,
and 5 and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after this material is
electronically filed or furnished to the SEC. We also make available, on our website, the charters of the
committees of our Board of Directors and Management’s Code of Ethics, the Code of Business
Conduct and Corporate Governance Guidelines pursuant to SEC requirements and New York Stock
Exchange listing standards.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in this Annuat Report on Form 10-K, the following factors
should be considered in evaluating the Company and its business. Our future operating results depend
upon many factors and are subject to various risks and uncertainties. The known material risks and
uncertainties which may cause our operating results to vary from anticipated results or which may
negatively affect our operating results and profitability are as follows:

The risks of economic, political, and social unrest may adversely affect our operating results; we are
dependent on conditions in the United States industrial sector.

Unfavorable global, domestic or regional economic or political conditions and other developments
and risks could negatively affect the Company’s business. For example, unfavorable changes related to
interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, inflation,
deflation, customer credit availability, customer debt levels, oil prices, and other matters that influence
the availability and cost of product, could adversely impact our business and operating results. In
addition, global economic and political conditions affect our customers’ businesses and the markets they
serve. A severe andfor prolonged economic downturn or a negative or uncertain political climate could
adversely affect our customers’ financial condition and the levels of business activity of our customers
and the industries we serve. This may reduce demand for our products or depress pricing of those
products and have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition to having an
impact on general economic conditions, events such as acts of terrorism, war, or similar unforeseen
events, may adversely affect our ability to service our customers and our results of operations, although
the impact of such events can be difficult to quantify. If we are unable to successfully anticipate
changing economic and political conditions, we may be unable to effectively plan for and respond to
those changes, and our business could be negatively affected.

In addition, a substantial portion of our revenues are from sales to customers in the manufacturing
sector. Accordingly, our financial results are dependent on conditions in the United States industrial
sector.
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We may encounter difficulties with acquisitions, which could harm our business.

In June 2006, we completed our acquisition of J&L. In the future, we intend to pursue strategic
acquisitions that we believe will either expand or complement our business in new or existing markets
or further enhance the value and offerings we are able to provide to our existing or future potential
customers. Acquisitions involve numerous risks and challenges, including the following:

* diversion of management’s attention from the normal operation of our business;

* potential loss of key employees and customers of the acquired companies;

* difficulties managing and integrating operations in geographically dispersed locations;
* the potential for deficiencies in internal controls at acquired companies;

* increases in our expenses and working capital requirements, which reduce our return on invested
capital,

* lack of experience operating in the geographic market or industry sector of the acquired
business; and

* cxposure to unanticipated liabilities of acquired companies.

To integrate acquired businesses, we must implement our management information systems,
operating systems and internal controls, and assimilate and manage the personnel of the acquired
operations. The difficulties of this integration may be further complicated by geographic distances. The
integration of acquired businesses may not be successful and could result in disruption to other parts of
our business.

Changes in our customer and product mix, or adverse changes to the cost of goods we sell, could cause our
gross margin percentage to fluctuate, or decrease.

From time to time, since our formation, we have experienced changes in our customer mix and in
our product mix. Changes in our customer mix have resulted from geographic expansion, daily selling
activities within current geographic markets, and targeted selling activities to new customer segments.
Changes in our product mix have resulted from marketing activities to existing customers and needs
communicated to us from existing and prospective customers. As our large account customer program
sales grow, we will face continued pressures on maintaining gross margin because these customers
receive lower pricing due to their higher sales volumes. There can be no assurance that we will be able
to maintain our historical gross margins. Although we have been successful in incrementally increasing
our gross margin percentage by varying our customer and product mix over the last several years and
our strategy has emphasized higher margin, lower volume orders, changes in our customer and product
mix, including increased sales to our large account customer programs, could cause our gross margin
percentage to fluctuate or decline from time to time in the future. In addition, we may be subject to
price increases from vendors that we may not be able to pass along to our customer.

We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The MRO supply industry, although consolidating, still remains a large, fragmented industry that is
highly competitive. We face competition from traditional channels of distribution such as retail outlets,
small dealerships, regional or national distributors utilizing direct sales forces, manufacturers of MRO
supplies, large warehouse stores and larger direct mail distributors. We believe that sales of MRO
supplies will become more concentrated over the next few years, which may make the industry more
competitive. Our competitors challenge us with a greater variety of product offerings, financial
resources, services or a combination of all of these factors.
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Although we have recently had success in diversifying our customer base, which we believe will
assist us to better managing periodic downturns in the manufacturing industry, there can be no
assurance that sales to these additional customers will offset the adverse effects of other competitive
trends in our industry, including those discussed above.

Our industry is consolidating which could cause it to become more competitive.

The business of selling MRO supplies in North America is currently undergoing some
consolidation. This consolidation is being driven by customer needs and supplier capabilities, which
could cause the industry to become more competitive as greater economies of scale are achieved by
suppliers.

Traditional MRO suppliers are attempting to consolidate the market through internal expansion,
through acquisitions or mergers with other industrial and construction suppliers, or through a
combination of both. This consolidation allows suppliers to improve efficiency and spread fixed costs
over a greater number of sales, and to achieve other benefits derived from economies of scale.

Customers are increasingly aware of the total costs of fulfillment, and of their need to have
congistent sources of supply at multiple locations. Consistent sources of supply provide not just reliable
product quantities, but also consistent pricing, quality, services and engineering capabilities. We believe
these customer needs could result in fewer suppliers as the industry consolidates, and as the remaining
suppliers become larger and capable of being a consistent source of supply.

The trend of our industry toward consolidation could make it more difficult for us to maintain our
operating margins. There can be no assurance that we will be able to take advantage of the trend or
that we can do so effectively.

In addition, as various sectors of the industrial and construction customer base face increased
foreign competition, and in fact lose business to foreign competitors or shift their operations overseas
in an effort to reduce expenses, we may face increased difficulty in growing and maintaining our
market share and growth prospects.

Volatility in commodity and energy prices may adversely affect operating margins.

In times of commodity and energy price increases, we may be subject to price increases from
vendors that we may be unable to pass along to our customers. Raw material costs used in our
products (steel, tungsten, etc.) and energy costs may increase, which may result in increased production
costs for our vendors. The fuel costs of our independent freight companies have been volatile. Qur
vendors and independent freight carriers typically look to pass increased costs along to us through price
increases. When we are forced to accept these price increases, we may not be able to pass them along
to our customers, resulting in lower operating margins.

As a United States government contractor, we are subject to certain laws and regulations which may
increase our costs of doing business and which subject us to certain compliance requirements and potential
liabilities.

As a supplier to the United States government, we must comply with certain laws and regulations,
including the Trade Agreements Act, the Buy American Act and the Federal Acquisition Regulation,
relating to the formation, administration and performance of United States government contracts.
These laws and regulations affect how we do business with government customers, and in some
instances, impose added compliance and other costs on our business. From time to time, we are subject
to governmental or regulatory inquiries or audits relating to our compliance with these laws and
regulations, including a current inquiry relating to the Trade Agreements Act. A violation of specific




laws and regulations could result in the imposition of fines and penalties or the termination of our
United States government contracts and could harm our reputation and cause our business to suffer.

Our business is exposed to the credit risk of our customers which could adversely affect our operating
results.

We perform periodic credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and collateral is
generally not required. Receivables are generally due within 30 days. We evaluate the collectibility of
accounts receivable based on numerous factors, including past transaction history with customers and
their credit worthiness and we provide a reserve for accounts that are potentially uncollectible. A
significant deterioration in the economy could have an adverse effect on the servicing of these accounts
receivable, which could result in longer payment cycles, increased collection costs and defaulits.

The risk of cancellation or rescheduling of orders may cause our operating results to fluctuate.

The cancellation or rescheduling of orders may cause our operating results to fluctuate. Although
we strive to maintain ongoing relationships with our customers, there is an ongoing risk that orders
may be cancelled or rescheduled due to fluctuations in our customers’ business needs or purchasing
budgets, including changes in national and local government budgets. Additionally, although our
customer base is diverse, ranging from individual machine shops to Fortune 1000 companies and large
governmental agencies, the cancellation or rescheduling of significant orders by larger customers may
still have a material adverse effect on our operating results from time to time.

Work stoppages and other disruptions, including those due to extreme weather conditions, at transportation
centers or shipping ports may adversely affect our ability to obtain inventory and make deliveries to our
customers.

Qur ability to provide same-day shipping of our core business products is an integral component of
our overall business strategy. Disruptions at transportation centers or shipping ports, due to labor
stoppages or severe weather conditions affect both our ability to maintain core products in inventory
and deliver products to our customers on a timely basis, which may in turn adversely affect our
customer relationships and results of operations. In addition, severe weather conditions could adversely
affect demand for our products in particularly hard hit regions.

The terms of our senior credit facility impose operating and financial restrictions on us, which may limit our
ability to respond to changing business and economic conditions.

We currently have revolving credit and term loan borrowings outstanding under our senior credit
facility, which we entered into in connection with our acquisition of J&I.. We are subject to various
operating and financial covenants under the credit facility which restrict our ability to, among other
things, incur additional indebtedness, make particular types of investments, incur certain types of liens,
consuminate certain mergers and consolidations, enter into transactions with affiliates or make
substantial asset sales. As of August 30, 2008, we are in compliance with the operating and financial
covenants of the credit facility. Any failure to comply with these covenants may constitute a breach
under the credit facility, which could result in the acceleration of all or a substantial portion of our
outstanding indebtedness and termination of revolving credit commitments under the facility. Our
failure to repay this indebtedness when due would materially adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.
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Conditions in the capital markets could adversely affect our ability to borrow under our senior credit facility
and could have a negative impact on our liquidity.

If any financial institution that has extended credit commitments to the Company, including
commitments under our revolving credit facility, is adversely affected by the conditions of the U.S. and
international capital markets, they may become unable to fund borrowings under their credit
commitments to the Company. Such failure could have a material and adverse impact on our ability to
borrow additional funds, if needed, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and other
corporate purposes.

Disruptions of our information systems could adversely affect us.

We believe that our computer software programs are an integral part of our business and growth
strategies. We depend upon our information systems to help process orders, to manage inventory and
accounts receivable collections, to purchase, sell and ship products efficiently and on a timely basis, to
maintain cost-effective operations, and to help provide superior service to our customers. Any
disruption in the operation of our information systems, including widespread power outages such as
those that affected the northeastern and midwest United States in August 2003, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Although we utilize
disaster recovery techniques and procedures, such as the use of redundant information systems in our
Atlanta customer fulfillment center which we believe are adequate to fulfill our needs, and we believe
that planned enhancements and upgrades to the next generation of our existing operating platforms will
be sufficient to sustain our present operations and our anticipated growth for the foreseeable future,
there can be no assurance that disruptions of our information systems will not occur.

Our success is dependent on certain key personnel.

Our success depends largely on the efforts and abilities of certain key senior management. The loss
of the services of one or more of such key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial results. We do not maintain any key-man insurance policies with respect to any
of our executive officers.

Opening or expanding our customer fulfillment centers expose us to risks of delays and affects our operating
results.

In the future, as part of our long term strategic planning, we may open new customer fulfillment
centers to improve our efficiency, geographic distribution and market penetration and intend to make,
as we have in the past, capital improvements and operational enhancements to certain of our existing
customer fulfillment centers. Moving or opening customer fulfillment centers and effecting such
improvements requires a substantial capital investment, including expenditures for real estate and
construction, and opening new customer fulfiliment centers requires a substantial investment in
inventory. In addition, new customer fulfillment centers will have an adverse impact on distribution
expenses as a percentage of sales, inventory turnover and return on investment in the periods prior to
and for some time following the commencement of operations of each new customer fulfillment center.
Additionally, until sales volumes mature at new customer fulfillment centers, operating expenses as a
percentage of sales may be adversely impacted. Further, substantial or unanticipated delays in the
commencement of operations at new customer fulfillment centers could have a material adverse effect
on our geographic expansion and may impact results of operations.

Our common stock price may be volatile.

We believe factors such as fluctuations in our operating results or the operating results of our
competitors, changes in economic conditions in the market sectors in which our customers operate,
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notably the durable and non-durable goods manufacturing industry, which accounted for a substantial
portion of our revenue for fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, and changes in general market conditions, could
cause the market price of our Class A common stock to fluctuate substantiaily.

Cur principal shareholders exercise significant control over us.

We have two classes of common stock. Our Class A common Stock has one vote per share and our
Class B common Stock has 10 votes per share. As of October 24, 2008, the Chairman of our Board of
Directors, his sister, certain of their family members and related trusts collectively own 100% of the
outstanding shares of our Class B common stock and approximately 1.9% of the outstanding shares of
our Class A common stock, giving them control over approximately 81.1% of the combined voting
power of our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock. Consequently, such shareholders
will be in a position to elect all of the directors of the Company and to determine the outcome of any
matter submitted to a vote of the Company’s shareholders for approval, including amendments to our
certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated by-laws, any proposed merger, consolidation
or sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other corporate transactions. Because this
concentrated control could discourage others from initiating any potential merger, takeover or other
change of control transaction that may otherwise be beneficial to our business, the market price of our
Class A common stock could be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We have customer fulfillment centers near the following locations:

. Approx. .
Location Sq. Ft. Operational Date
Atlanta, Georgia(1, 4) . .. . ... it e 706,000  October 1990
Elkhart, Indiana(2)} .. ... ... ... i s 528,000  March 1996
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania(2) . ... . ... .. . .. o i 637,000  January 1997
Reno, Nevada(2). . ... ... e i 419,000 November 1999
Wednesbury, United Kingdom(3) .. . .............. .. oo, 79,000 June 1998

(1) The related party lease for this facility expires on July 1, 2030.

(2) These facilities are owned by MSC.

(3) This facility was acquired as part of the J&L acquisition and is leased.
(4) This facility was expanded during fiscal 2008.

We maintain 96 branch offices within the United States located in 40 States and one location in
the United Kingdom. The branches range in size from 1,000 to 55,000 square feet. The leases for these
branch offices will expire at various periods between November 2008 and June 2017. The aggregate
annual lease payments on these branches and the Atlanta and Wednesbury customer fulfillment centers
in fiscal 2008 was approximately $9.4 million.

We maintain our headquarters at a 170,000 square foot facility that we own in Melville, New York
and maintain office space in a 50,000 square foot facility that we lease in Southfield, Michigan. We
believe that our facilities are adequate for our current needs and for the foresecable future; we also
expect that suitable additional space will be available as needed.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are various claims, lawsuits, and pending actions against the Company incident to the
operation of its business. In addition, as a government contractor, from time to time the Company is
subject to governmental or regulatory inquiries or audits, including a current inquiry relating to the
Trade Agreements Act compliance. A claim against the Company arising from this inquiry has not been
made and the amount of potential liability, if any, is not estimable at this time. However, in the
opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of all such claims, lawsuits, pending actions and
inquiries will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial
position, results of operations or liquidity.

On November 15, 2007, a purported shareholder derivative action, captioned Plymouth County
Retirement Association v. Schroeder et. al. (the “Litigation”), was filed in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of New York (the “Court”), on the Company’s behalf, against the
Company as nominal defendant, the Company’s Board of Directors and certain of the Company’s
current and former directors and officers. The plaintiff derivatively claims violations of Sections 10(b)
and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, as well as
breach of fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment in connection with certain
stock options granted from 1997 to 2001. The plaintiff seeks unspecified damages, disgorgement of
stock options and any proceeds received from the exercise of misdated stock options, an accounting of
stock option grants and costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses. On February 1, 2008, the
Company and the individually named defendants filed motions to dismiss the Litigation. By
memorandum and order dated September 5, 2008, the Court granted in part and denied in part those
motions. By agreement of the parties, proceedings in the Litigation are currently stayed. Based on the
allegations in the complaint, the Company believes the plaintiff’s claims are without merit.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008,
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PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

MSC’s Class A common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under
the symbol “MSM.” MSC’s Class B common stock is not traded in any public market.

The following table sets forth the range of the high and low closing sales prices as reported by the
NYSE and cash dividends per share for the period from August 27, 2006 to August 30, 2008.

Price of Class A

Common Stock Dividend Per Share

Common Stock

Fiscal Year Ended August 30, 2008 High Low  Class A & Class B
First Quarter—December 1, 2007 . . ... . . ... . i $53.56 $39.35 $0.18
Second Quarter—March 1,2008. . .. ... ... ... ... . ... ..., 4484 3513 0.18
Third Quarter—May 31,2008 ............... ... ........ 5450 3753 0.18
Fourth Quarter—August 30,2008 . ... ............. ... ..... 5375 4243 0.20

Price of Class A

Common Stock Dividend Per Share

Common Stock

Fiscal Year Ended September 1, 2007 High Low Class A & Class B
First Quarter—November 25,2006 . . . ..., ... . ... o .. $44.11 $37.44 $0.14
Second Quarter—February 24,2007 .. ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 4550  38.54 0.14
Third Quarter—May 26,2007 ......... ... .. . it 51.51 4179 0.18
Fourth Quarter—September 1,2007 . ...................... 5733 4847 0.18

On July 10, 2003, the Board of Directors instituted a policy of paying regular quarterly cash
dividends to our shareholders. The Company paid a total annual cash dividend of $0.74 and $0.64 per
share for fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively. This policy is reviewed regularly by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors currently intends to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends of
$0.20 per share for the foreseeable future, although the Board of Directors may in its discretion
determine to modify or eliminate such dividends at any time.

On October 16, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per share
payable on November 13, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of business on October 30, 2008,
The dividend of $0.20 per share will result in a quarterly payout of approximately $12.5 million, based
on the number of shares outstanding at October 24, 2008.

On October 24, 2008, the last reported sales price for MSC’s Class A common stock on the NYSE
was $33.35 per share.

The approximate number of holders of record of MSC’s Class A common stock as of October 24,
2008 was 623. The number of holders of record of MSC’s Class B common stock as of QOctober 24,
2008 was 21.
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Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth repurchases by the Company of its outstanding shares of Class A
common stock, during the quarter ended August 30, 2008:

Fiscal Month

06/01/08-07/05/08 . . . . ...........
07/06/08-08/02/08 . . . . ...........
08/03/08-08/30/08 . . . . ...........

(1) Activity is reported on a trade date basis.

Total Number of  Paid Per Share or Programs

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased as Maximum Number
Part of Publicly  of Shares that May
Average Price  Announced Plans Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans

Shares Purchased (1) 2) or Programs
253,709 $43.28 253,709 4,245,521
1,239,864 4497 1,239,864 3,005,657
— — — 3,005,657
1,493,573 $44.69 1,493,573

(2) During fiscal 1999, the Board of Directors established the MSC stock repurchase plan, which we
refer to as the Repurchase Plan. The total number of shares of our Class A common stock initially
authorized for future repurchase was set at 5,000,000 shares. On January 8, 2008 the Board of
Directors reaffirmed and replenished the Plan so that the total number of shares of Class A
common stock authorized for future repurchase was increased to 7,000,000 shares. As of
August 30, 2008, the maximum number of shares that may yet be repurchased under the
Repurchase Plan was 3,005,657 shares. There is no expiration date for this program.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information for our equity compensation plans in effect as of August 30, 2008 is as follows:

Pian category

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders:

Equity compensation plans
(excluding Associate Stock
Purchase Plan) ..............

Associate Stock Purchase Plan. . ...

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . .. ..

Number of securities to Weighted-average

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(a) (b) ©
2,644,000 $30.56 1,665,000(1)
— — 109,000
2,644,000 $30.56 1,774,000

(1) Represents shares available for future issuance under our 2005 Omnibus Equity Plan. Such shares
may become subject to stock option grants or stock appreciation rights or may be issued directly as
stock awards with such terms and conditions, performance requirements, restrictions, forfeiture
provisions, contingencies and other limitations as determined by the plan administrator.
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Performance Graph

The following stock price performance graph and accompanying information is not deemed to be
“soliciting material” or to be ‘filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference
into any filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, which we refer to as the Exchange Act, or be subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Exchange Act, regardless of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on an investment in our common stock
with the cumulative total return of an investment in each of the S&P Midcap 400 Index and The Dow
Jones US Business Support Services Index. The graph assumes $100 invested at the closing price of our
Class A common stock on the New York Stock Exchange and each index on August 30, 2003 and
assumes that all dividends paid on such securities during the applicable fiscal years were reinvested.
Indexes are calculated on a month-end basis. The comparisons in this table are based on historical data
and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of the possible future performance of our Class A
common stock.

Cumulative Total Stockholder Return
for the Period from August 30, 2003 through August 30, 2008

$300 -
$250 -
$200 -
$150
$100 4
$50
8/30/03 8/28/04 8/27/05 B/26/06 9107 8/30/08
——H&—— MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC.
— —A— — 5 & P MIDCAP 400
===e--«= DOW JONES US BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES
Fiscal Years Ended
8/30/03 8/28/04 8/27/05 8/26/06 91/07 8/30/08
MSC Industrial Direct Co.,Inc. ........ $100.00 $143.83 $166.83 $190.63 $260.10 $260.15
S&P Midcap 400 .. ... ... .......... $100.00 311242 3$140.32 $149.67 $174.33 $166.98

Dow Jones US Business Support Services . $100.00 $107.17 $119.74 $129.94 $152.77 $144.68

Source: Research Data Group, Inc.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following selected financial information is qualified by reference to, and should be read in
conjunction with, the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, and
“Management’s Discossion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contained
elsewhere herein. The selected consolidated income statement data for the fiscal years ended
August 26, 2006, September 1, 2007 and August 30, 2008 and the selected consolidated balance sheet
data as of September 1, 2007 and August 30, 2008 are derived from MSC’s audited consolidated
financial statements which are included elsewhere herein. The selected consolidated income statement
data for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2004 and August 27, 2005 and the selected consolidated
balance sheet data as of August 28, 2004, August 27, 2005 and August 26, 2006 are derived from MSC’s
audited consolidated financial statements not included herein. For the fiscal year ended August 26,
2006, the selected consolidated income statement data includes J&L as of June 8, 2006, which was the
acquisition date, and the selected consolidated balance sheet data includes J&L as of the fiscal year
ended August 26, 2006. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements contained herein.

Fiscal Years Ended
Aogust 28 August 27,  August 26,  September 1,  August 30,
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (53 weeks) (52 weeks)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Income Statement Data:

Netsales .. ... $955,282 $1,099915 $1,317,519 $1,688,186  $1,779,841
Grossprofit ........... ... ..., 430,369 504,075 613,460 780,489 822,512
Operating eXpenses .. ............c.00.. 299,661 326,415 392,594 489,606 502,984
Income from operations .. ............. 130,708 177,660 220,866 290,883 319,528
INCOME tAXES . . . . v v w v i i i inann e 51,886 69,484 85,381 105,564 117,116
Netincome . ........coiiiiiiiinnannn 81,155 112,270 136,389 173,930 196,243
Net income per common share:

Basic ........c0iiiiiii i, 1.21 1.65 2.04 2.64 3.08

Diluted . .......... ..o i, 1.17 1.61 2.00 2359 3.04
Weighted average common shares

outstanding:

BasiC ........ciiiiiiinniiiian, 67,056 67,934 66,827 65,800 63,743

Diluted . ........... ..ot 69,548 69,889 68,319 67,057 64,659

Cash dividends declared per common share . $ 029 § 1.94(2)$ 054 § 064 § 0.74
Consolidated Batance Sheet Data (at period

end):
Working capital . . ............. ... ... $326,376 $ 339,194 § 374746 § 416515 § 372,075
Total assets . . . ..o 729,387 651,598 1,014,298 1,075,327 1,102,726
Short-termdebt . .. .................. 142 151 7,843 33,471 134,726
Long-term debt, net of current maturities . . . 997 830 192,986 142,200 98,473
Shareholders’ equity . . . . .............. 618,206 530,416 639,273 727,877 711,612
Selected Operating Data:(1)

Active customers . .. ........c.c..ounn 344 343 346(3) 390 3N
Approximate Number of SKUs .......... 550 550 550(3) 590 550
Ordersentered .......... ... v, 4,020 4,295 4,774 5,729 5,874
Number of publications mailed .......... 28,200 28,600 29,600 30,200 26,900
Number of publication titles (not in

thousands) . .. ...... .. i 96 97 112 126 123

(1) See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—General.”
(2) Includes a special dividend of $1.50 per share.
(3) Excludes J&L.




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

General

Our goal is to become the preferred supplier of MRO supplies for companies throughout the
United States. We intend to increase sales to existing customers and diversify our customer base by:

* expanding government and national account programs;

* expanding our direct sales force and increasing their productivity, and opening new branch
offices;

+ selectively pursuing strategic acquisitions;

* increasing the number of product lines and SKUs offered, including generic and imported
products;

* targeting the circulation and content of our master catalogs and our direct mail campaign;

* continually developing technological innovations employing modern technologies to reduce our
customers’ costs and utilizing extensive e-commerce capabilities, making it even easier and more
appealing to do business with MSC;

* enhancing our next day service model; and
* maintaining excellent customer support service.

On June 8, 2006, we acquired, through our wholly owned subsidiary, MSC Acquisition Corp. VI,
all of the outstanding common stock of J&L, a former subsidiary of Kennametal, Inc. On September 1,
2008, we completed the brand integration of the J&L business and launched the MSC/J&L
Metalworking brand. The completion of the integration marks a very important milestone for MSC,
and the result is a customer experience that brings together the best that MSC and J&L have to offer.
This new brand reflects our continued commitment to both the expertise and services that the former
J&L customers depended on and our continued commitment in metalworking. It also speaks to all of
the added services and products that MSC offers. MSC/J&L Metalworking customers now have the
option of purchasing from our complete line of products through the MSC Big Book in addition to the
MSC/J&L Metalworking catalog.

The acquisition of J&L has played a significant role in our recent growth. We opportunistically
pursue strategic acquisitions that we believe will either expand or complement our business in new or
existing markets or further enhance the value and offerings we are able to provide to our existing or
future potential customers.

Through the first half of fiscal 2008, we continued to benefit from a strong United States economy
as well as the execution of our growth strategies to increase revenues. For the year ended August 30,
2008, net sales increased 5.4% (7.5% on an average daily sales basis) over the 2007 fiscal year, and
fiscal 2007 sales increased 28.1% (25.6% on an average daily sales basis) over the 2006 fiscal year. The
fiscal 2008 period included 52 weeks versus 53 weeks in fiscal 2007. We have been able to expand our
national account and government program (the “Large Account Customer”) sectors, which have
become important components of our overall customer mix, revenue base, recent growth, and planned
business expansion. By expanding in these sectors, which involve customers with multiple locations and
high volume MRO needs, we are diversifying our customer base beyond small and mid-sized customers,
thereby reducing the cyclical nature of our business. We may continue to increase the number of sales
associales in existing markets and new markets. However, we will manage the timing of sales force
increases and branch openings based on economic conditions. During fiscal 2008, we opened new
branches near Salt Lake City, Utah, Portland, Oregon, and Seartle, Washington areas with their own
sales force as part of our west coast expansion strategy. Sales related to the new branches did not have
a significant impact on our total sales for fiscal 2008. We have increased the number of total sales
associates to 912 at August 30, 2008 compared to 814 at September 1, 2007.
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Gross margin remained constant in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 at 46.2%. This is primarily the result
of passing on most of our vendors’ product price increases and independent freight carriers’ surcharges
and raising prices due to market conditions. The increase in net sales contributed to an increase in
gross profit which resulted in another year of increased cash flows. As a result we were able to return
$47.6 million to shareholders in the form of dividends and made repurchases of $187.2 million of our
Class A common stock.

Operating expenses increased 2.7% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This is a result of an
increase in operating expenses to support the sales growth (primarily payroll related costs and freight
expenses), offset by a decrease in the annual bonus expense accrual and the absence of integration
costs related to the acquisition of J&L. However, the increase in net sales and the realization of
operating leverage from prior investments in our infrastructure enabled us to increase operating
margins to 18.0% for fiscal 2008 as compared to 17.2% in fiscal 2007,

During fiscal 2008, we decreased direct mail advertising levels compared to fiscal 2007 levels. The
number of active customers (defined as those that have made at least one purchase in the last
12 months) at August 30, 2008 was approximately 371,000. During fiscal 2008, we decreased direct mail
advertising levels compared to fiscal 2007 levels. We continue to see the benefits of our more focused
mailing strategy as our sales per advertising piece continues to grow.

The Institute for Supply Management (“ISM”) index, which measures the economic activity of the
United States manufacturing sector, is important to our planning because it historically has been an
indicator of our manufacturing customers’ activity. A substantial portion of our revenues came from
sales in the manufacturing sector during fiscal 2008, including some national account customers. An
ISM reading below 50.0% generally indicates that the manufacturing sector is contracting. The ISM
index trended close to 50.0% for most of fiscal 2008 but has declined sharply to 43.5% for the month
of September 2008, which is indicative of an economic slowdown in the manufacturing sector. Details
released with the most recent index indicate that although exports are growing, current production,
inventories, new orders, employment and supplier deliveries are contracting. The ISM index at these
levels coupled with the current instability in the stock market are likely indications of a deceleration in
the growth of the overall economy as well as of the manufacturing sector. We believe that the impact
of volatile energy prices and raw material costs, the credit crisis, inflation, interest rate fluctuations,
along with the general condition of the United States economy, are having an adverse effect on our
sales growth and margins in fiscal 2009. We are uncertain as to the long term impact of this economic
cycle but we will continue 1o look for opportunities to increase market share and deliver value added
services to our customers. We believe that our strong balance sheet will enable us to extend credit to
our credit worthy customers during this credit crisis, while many of our smaller competitors in our
fragmented industry may struggle to meet their cash needs. We believe that companies will be seeking
cost reductions-and shorter cycle times from their suppliers. Our business model focuses on providing
overall procurement cost reduction and just-in-time delivery to meet our customers’ needs. To meet our
customers’ needs and our business goals, we will seek to continue to drive cost reduction throughout
our business through cost saving strategies and increased leverage from our existing infrastructure, and
continue to provide additional procurement cost savings solutions to our customers through technology
such as with our CMI and VMI programs.

Results of Operations

Net Sales
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
Angust 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, August 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
NetSales . ............. $1,779,841 $1,688,186 54%  $1,688,186 $1,317,519 28.1%
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Net sales increased 5.4% and based on average daily sales increased 7.5% for the fiscal year ended
2008. Of these amounts, we estimate approximately 15.1% of the growth for fiscal 2008 was attributable
to our increase in prices on certain stock keeping units (“SKUs”) based on market conditions in
accordance with our pricing strategy. We estimate approximately 60.0% of the net sales growth is
attributable to our Large Account Customer programs. The remaining net sales growth is primarily a
result of an increase in sales to our new and existing core accounts.

Net sales increased 28.1% and based on average daily sales increased 25.6% for the fiscal year
ended 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006. Of this amount, we estimate approximately 11.7% of the
growth for fiscal 2007 was attributable to our increase in prices on SKUSs based on market conditions in
accordance with our pricing strategy. J&L contributed 59.1% of the growth through the third quarter of
fiscal 2007 (since the systems were integrated in the fourth quarter, separate data is only available
through the third quarter). We estimate approximately 12.8% of the net sales growth for the fiscal year
ended 2007 is attributable to our Large Account Customer programs and 9.1% is related to the extra
week in fiscal 2007. The remaining net sales growth is primarily a result of an increase in sales to our
new and existing core accounts.

The primary reasons for the increase in sales to existing customers during fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2007 is a combination of the success of our sales force in expanding the accounts as well as the
strength of the United States economy through the middle part of the fiscal 2008 year. Our Large
Account Customer programs sales initiative continued to be successful throughout fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2007, and contributed strongly to our total sales growth and the diversification of our customer mix and
revenue base. The growth of the Large Account Customer programs (these customers tend to order
larger amounts) is the primary reason for the increase in average order size to $319 for the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008 as compared to $296, for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. These Large Account
Customers tend to require advanced e-commerce capabilities. We believe that our ability to transact
business with our customers through various portals and directly through the MSC Websites, gives us a
competitive advantage over smaller suppliers. Sales through the MSC Websites were $476.5 million for
fiscal 2008, representing 26.8% of consolidated net sales. We expect that our Large Account Customer
programs will continue to grow and that we will benefit from processing more sales through electronic
transactions that carry lower operating costs than orders processed manually through our call centers
and branches. These cost savings may be offset by the lower gross margins on national accounts and
government business.

We grew our field sales force to 912 associates at August 30, 2008, from 814 at September 1, 2007
and 715 at August 26, 2006, increases of approximately 12.0% and 13.8% for fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2007, respectively, as part of our strategy to acquire new accounts and expand existing accounts across
all customer types. Included in the sales force numbers in fiscal 2008 is the sales team for the Salt Lake
City, Utah, Portland, Oregon and Seattle, Washington, area branches that opened in fiscal 2008, as part
of our west coast expansion. The J&I. sales associates have been included since August 26, 2006. Sales
related to the new branches did not have a significant impact on our total sales during fiscal 2008.

We introduced approximately 24,000 new SKUs in our fiscal 2008 catalog and removed
approximately 30,000 SKUs. In the fiscal 2009 MSC catalog, distributed in September 2008, we added
approximately 20,000 new SKUs and removed approximately 15,000 SKUs. We believe that the new
SKUs improve the overall quality of our offering.

Gross Profit
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, Acngust 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Gross Profit . . ............. $822,512  $780,489 5.4% $780,489  $613,460 27.2%
Gross Profit Margin . .. ...... 46.2% 46.2% 46.2% 46.6%




Gross profit margin remained the same for fiscal 2008 as in fiscal 2007. The decrease in gross
profit margin in fiscal 2007 to 46.2% from 46.6% in fiscal 2006 is a result of the full year impact of the
lower J&L gross margins due to pricing and increases in the cost of goods purchased offset by our
price increases on certain SKUs based on market conditions.

Operating Expenses
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, Aungust 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Operating Expenses . ........ $502,984  $489,606 27%  $489,606  $392,594 24.7%
Percentage of Net Sales ... ... 28.3% 29.0% 29.0% 29.8%

The dollar increase in operating expenses for fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily
due to an increase in payroll and payroll related costs, an increase in freight expense to support
increased sales, product sourcing and Internet initiatives, and increased spending on other growth
development programs, offset by the extra week of expenses in fiscal 2007, the absence of integration
costs related to the acquisition of J&L, and a reduction in the annual bonus expense accrual in fiscal
2008.

Payroll and payroll related costs continue to make up a significant portion of our operating
expenses. These costs increased in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of an
increase in headcount and annual payroll increases. The increase in headcount is primarily the result of
an increase in sales associates as part of our overall growth strategy to build sales as well as an increase
in personnel in our customer fulfillment centers and branches to handle increased sales volume. The
increase is also due to product sourcing and Internet initiatives, as well as spending on growth
development programs. For fiscal 2008, the increase in these expenses are offset by the extra week in
fiscal 2007 and a reduction in the annual bonus expense accrual as the fiscal 2008 annual bonus payout
will be at lower levels than in fiscal 2007.

The decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net sales for fiscal 2008, as compared to
fiscal 2007, is primarily a result of productivity gains, the allocation of fixed expenses over a larger
revenue base, and the Company’s cost containment initiatives.

The dollar increase in operating expenses for fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 was primarily
the result of the full year impact of J&L in fiscal 2007, increased payroll and payroll related costs and
an increase in freight expense to support increased sales. Included in operating expenses in fiscal 2007
were $6.2 million related to J&L acquisition integration costs, compared to $3.2 million in fiscal 2006,
and the amortization expense of intangibles assets recorded as a result of the acquisition of J&L of
$7.8 million in fiscal 2007 compared to $1.8 million in fiscal 2006.

Payroll and payroll related costs increased in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 primarily as a
result of an increase in headcount and annual payroll increases. The increase in headcount was
primarily the result of the acquisition of J&L and an increase in sales associates as part of our overall
growth strategy to build sales as well as an increase in personnel in our customer fulfillment centers
and branches to handle increased sales volume.

Medical costs per covered associate for our self-insured group health plan for fiscal 2007 were
slightly lower than the fiscal 2006 levels. However, medical expenses in total did increase approximately
17.1% for fiscal 2007 largely due to an increase in participants, primarily related to the J&L
acquisition.

The decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net sales for fiscal 2007, as compared to
fiscal 2006, was primarily a result of productivity gains and the allocation of fixed expenses over a
larger revenue base offset by the amortization of identifiable intangibles related to the J&L acquisition.
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Income from Operations

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, August 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
{Dollars in thousands)
Income from Operations. ... .. $319,528  $290,883 9.8% $290.883  $220,866 31.7%
Percentage of Net Sales ... ... 18.0% 17.2% 17.2% 16.8%

Income from operations for fiscal 2008 was $319.5 million, an increase of $28.6 million, or 9.8%
compared to fiscal 2007, and as a percentage of net sales, increased to 18.0% in fiscal 2008 from 17.2%
in fiscal 2007. The dollar increase in income from operations for fiscal 2008 was primarily attributable
to the increase in net sales, offset in part by the increase in operating expenses as described above. For
fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007, income from operations as a percentage of net sales increased due
to productivity gains and the distribution of expenses over a larger revenue base.

Income from operations for fiscal 2007 was $290.9 million, an increase of $70.0 million, or 31.7%
compared to fiscal 2006, and as a percentage of net sales, increased to 17.2% in fiscal 2007 from 16.8%
in fiscal 2006. The dollar increase in income from operations for fiscal 2007 was primarily attributable
to the increase in net sales, a portion of which is attributable to J&L, offset in part by the increase in
operating expenses as described above. For fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006, income from operations
as a percentage of net sales increased due to productivity gains and the distribution of expenses over a
larger revenue base offset by the decrease in gross profit margin as described above.

Interest Expense
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, Auvgust 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest Expense ........... $ (8376) $(12,598) -33.5% $(12,598) § (2,926) 330.6%

The decrease in interest expense for fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 is a result of lower
average interest rates. The increase in interest expense for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 is a
result of a full year of interest expense related to the borrowings in connection with the J&L
acquisition. Only one fiscal quarter of interest expense related to these borrowings was incurred in
fiscal 2006 as the J&L acquisition occurred in the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The
outstanding borrowings were $233.2 million and $175.7 million at August 30, 2008 and September 1,
2007, respectively.

Interest Income

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, August 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest Income ............ § 649 § 939 309% $ 0 939§ 3,559 -73.6%

The decrease in interest income for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006, is a result of lower
average cash and investment balances due to the acquisition of J&L, an increase in our quarterly
dividend and the repurchases of our Class A common stock in fiscal 2007 of $75.2 million as compared
to $27.2 million in fiscal 2006.
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Other Income, Net

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, August 26, FPercentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Other Income, Net. .. ....... $ 1,558 % 270 477.0% $ 270 § 271 -004%

The increase in other income, net for fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007, is a result of a gain of
$1.6 million on the sale of our 50% interest in certain commercial property to a related party.

Provision for Income Taxes

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September I, August 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
{Dollars in thousands}
Provision for Income Taxes . ... 3$117,116  $105,564 109%  $105,564 § 85,381 23.6%
Effective Tax Rate .......... 37.4% 37.8% 37.8% 38.5%

Our fiscal 2008 effective tax rate was 37.4% compared to 37.8% in fiscal 2007. The rate decrease is
primarily attributable to a decrease in the State tax rate. We anticipate that the effective tax rate for
fiscal 2009 will be approximately 38.0%.

Our fiscal 2007 effective tax rate was 37.8% compared to 38.5% in fiscal 2006. The rate decrease is
primarily attributable to lower non-cash compensation expense and a decrease in the State tax rate.

Net Income
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, Percentage September 1, August 26, Percentage
2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Netlncome ............... $196,243  $173,930 12.8%  $173,930  $136,389 27.5%
Diluted Earnings Per Share ... § 304 § 259 174% $ 259 § 200 29.5%

The results which affected net income and diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2008 and fiscal
2007 as compared to prior periods have been discussed above. We repurchased approximately
4.6 million and 1.8 million shares of our Class A common stock in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007,
respectively. As a result of the stock repurchases, we were able to reduce the weighted average shares
outstanding in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007.
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Quarterly Results and Seasonality
The following table sets forth unaudited financial data for each of MSC’s last eight fiscal quarters.

Fiscal Year Ended September 1, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended Angust 30, 2008

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Consolidated Income
Statement Data:
Netsales,......... $402,012 $404,618 $431,057 $450,499 $437,554 $436,486 $457,238 $448,563
Gross profit ....... 185,691 187,601 199,305 207,892 202,570 203,058 210,445 206,439
Income from
operations .. ..... 69,206 69,569 75409 76,699 77,970 78,615 84,813 78,130
Netincome ........ 40,296 40,507 45,765 47,362 46866 47460 51,385 50,532
Net income per
share:
Basic........... 0.61 0.62 0.70 0.72 071 0.74 0.82 081
Diluted ......... 0.60 0.61 0.69 0.71 0.70 0.73 0.81 0.80

We have generally experienced slightly lower sales volumes during the summer months. As a result,
net income in the fourth fiscal quarter is historically somewhat lower than in the third fiscal quarter,
due largely to the continuation of our fixed costs during slower sales periods. However, the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2007 includes the effect of an extra week as which is a result of our 53 week fiscal
period that occurs once every five years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary capital needs have been to fund the working capital requirements necessitated by our
sales growth, adding new products, and facilities expansions. In the past, our primary sources of
financing have been cash generated from operations. In fiscal 2006, we entered into a new term loan
and revolving credit agreement. Proceeds from the term loan were used to fund part of the purchase
price of the J&L acquisition in June 2006. Borrowings under the revolving credit, together with cash
generated from operations, have been used to fund our working capital needs, repurchase shares of our
Class A common stock, and pay dividends. At August 30, 2008, total borrowings outstanding were
$233.2 million, as compared to $175.7 million at September 1, 2007. We believe that anticipated cash
flows from operations and borrowings available under our credit facility will be sufficient to fund
operations through at least the next twelve months.

We have a credit facility that consists of a revolving credit line commitment and term loan facility
that expires on June 30, 2011. On February 14, 2008, we increased the revolving credit line
commitment from $75.0 million to $150.0 million of which we had $91.0 million outstanding at
August 30, 2008. The interest rate payable for borrowings under the revolving loans is currently 40
basis points over LIBOR rates. The weighted average borrowing rate in effect for the revolving loans at
August 30, 2008 was 2.86%. We are also charged a fee of 10 basis points on the borrowed and
unborrowed balances of the revolving loans. The loans under the revolving credit line are generally due
in thirty days, although, sixty, ninety and one hundred eighty day increments are available.

At August 30, 2008, we had term loan borrowings outstanding under our credit facility of
$141.7 million. Principal payments on the term loan began in June 2007. The remaining payments
consist of quarterly installments of approximately $10.3 million in each of the next three quarters
commengcing in September 2008, approximately $12.8 million in each of the following four quarters
commencing in June 2009, $20.5 million in each of the following two quarters commencing in June
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2010 and a final payment of approximately $18.7 million due in December 2010, Optional prepayments
may be made at any time, or from time to time, in whole or part, without premium or penalty. The
interest rate payable for borrowings under the credit facility is currently 50 basis points over LIBOR
rates. The borrowing rate in effect for the term loan borrowings at August 30, 2008 was 2.99%. Under
the terms of the credit facility, we are subject to various operating and financial covenants, including a
maximum consolidated leverage ratio and a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio. At

August 30, 2008, we were in compliance with the operating and financial covenants of the credit
facility.

On February 7, 2008, we issued a Promissory Note (the “Note”), effective as of January 17, 2008.
Pursuant to the Note, we were able to borrow from the lender, in the lender’s sole discretion, up to
$50.0 million. Subject to certain exceptions, the interest rate for any loans made pursuant to the Note
was calculated, at our option, at (a) the prime rate as is publicly announced by the lender from time to
time, (b) a fixed rate of interest determined by the lender in its sole discretion or (c) the adjusted
LIBOR rate plus 40 basis points. During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, we borrowed and repaid
$30.0 million under the Note. The Note terminated on March 11, 2008. The primary purpose of this
borrowing was to provide temporary access to funding until our revolving credit line commitment under
our credit facility was extended to $150.0 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008 and
September 1, 2007 was $218.6 million and $165.2 million, respectively. The increase of approximately
$53.4 million in net cash provided from operations resulted primarily from higher net income, a decline
in inventory, and a decrease in the growth of accounts receivable, offset by a decline in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. Net cash provided by operating activities for the fiscal years ended
September 1, 2007 and August 26, 2006 was $165.2 million and $133.5 million, respectively. The
increase of approximately $31.7 million in net cash provided from operations resulted primarily from
higher net income, increased depreciation and amortization and other assets, offset by increased growth
in inventory.

Net cash used in investing activities for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008 and September 1,
2007 was $19.1 million and $39.2 million, respectively. The decrease of approximately $20.1 million
resulted primarily from the cash paid for the J&L acquisition in fiscal 2007 and a decrease in
expenditures for property, plant and equipment in fiscal 2008.

Net cash used in investing activities for the fiscal years ended September 1, 2007 and August 26,
2006 was $39.2 million and $333.8 million, respectively. The decrease of approximately $294.6 million
resulted primarily from the cash paid in connection with the acquisition of J&L in fiscal 2006, offset by
the net proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments used to fund the acquisition of J&L.

Net cash used in financing activities for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008 and September 1,
2007 was $164.3 million and $126.0 million, respectively. The increase of approximately $38.3 million in
net cash used in financing activities was primarily attributable to repurchases of shares of Class A
common stock, the quarterly cash dividends paid to sharcholders, repayments of notes payable under
the credit facility and other notes, offset by the net proceeds under the revolving loan from the credit
facility and promissory note.

Net cash used in financing activities for the fiscal year ended September 1, 2007 was $126.0 million
and net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal year ended August 26, 2006 was
$167.0 million. The net cash used in financing activities for fiscal 2007 was primarily attributable to
increases in the repurchases of shares of Class A common stock, the quarterly cash dividends paid to
shareholders, and the repayments of notes payable under the credit facility and other notes. The net
cash provided by financing activities for fiscal 2006 was primarily attributable to the borrowings under
the credit facility offset by the payment of cash dividends.
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The Board of Directors has established the MSC stock repurchase plan (the “Plan”), and the total
number of shares of Class A common stock initially authorized for future repurchase was set at
5.0 million shares. On January 8, 2008, when the remaining shares available to be repurchased under
the Plan was approximately 1.9 million shares, the Board of Directors reaffirmed and replenished the
Plan so that the total number of shares of Class A common stock authorized for future repurchase was
increased to 7.0 million shares. The Plan allows the Company to repurchase shares at any time and in
any increments it deems appropriate in accordance with Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. We repurchased approximately 4.6 million shares of our Class A common stock in
the open market for $187.2 million and approximately 1.8 million shares of our Class A common stock
in the open market at a cost of $75.2 million in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively. Any future
repurchases will depend on a variety of factors, including price and market conditions. We reissued
approximately 66,000 and 70,000 shares of treasury stock during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively,
to fund our associate stock purchase plan.

On July 10, 2003, the Board of Directors instituted a policy of regular quarterly cash dividends to
shareholders. This policy is reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors. We paid dividends to
shareholders totaling $47.6 million and $42.3 million, in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively.

On October 16, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.20 per share
payable on November 13, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of business on October 30, 2008.
The dividend of $0.20 per share will result in a quarterly payout of approximately $12.5 million, based
on the number of shares outstanding at October 24, 2008.

As a result of implementing operational enhancements and expansions in customer fulfillment
centers, we may see an increase in capital expenditures during fiscal 2009. We have adequate resources
to fund these plans with cash and our revolving credit facility.

Contractual Obligations

We are affiliated with two real estate entities (together, the “Affiliates”). The Affiliates are owned
primarily by our principal sharcholders (Mitchell Jacobson, our Chairman, and his sister Marjorie
Gershwind). We paid rent under operating leases to the Affiliates of approximately $1.9 million for
fiscal 2008, and $1.7 million for each of fiscal 2007 and 2006, in connection with our occupancy of our
Adanta Customer Fulfillment Center and one branch office located in Pawtucket, Rhode Island. In the
opinion of our management, based on its market research, the leases with Affiliates are on terms which
approximate fair market value.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at August 30, 2008 (in thousands):

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years  3-5 years § years
QOperating lease obligations with
non-Affiliates(1y . . .......... ... ...... $ 39,180 $ 11,576 § 16,071 § 6,860 $ 4,673
Operating lease obligations with Affiliates(1) . . . 52,747 2,301 4,537 4,551 41,358
Total operating leases . . .................. 91,927 13,877 20,608 11,411 46,031
Long-term notes payable ................. 233,199 134,726 98,459 14 —
Total ... e $325,126 $148,603 $119,067 $11,425 346,031

(1) Certain of our operations are conducted on leased premises, two of which are leased from
Affiliates, as described above. These leases (most of which require us to provide for the payment
of real estate taxes, insurance and other operating costs) are for varying periods, the longest
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extending to the year 2030. In addition, we are obligated under certain equipment and automobile
operating leases, which expire on varying dates through 2012.

We believe that existing cash, together with cash generated from operations and funds available
under the revolving credit facility will be sufficient to meet our projected working capital and other
cash flow requirements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We make estimates, judgments and assumptions in determining the amounts reported in the
condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates are used to form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities and the amount of revenues and expenses reported that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Our significant accounting
policies are described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies
described below are impacted by our critical accounting estimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We perform periodic credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and collateral is
generally not required. We evaluate the collectibility of accounts receivable based on numerous factors,
including past transaction history with customers and their credit-worthiness. We estimate an allowance
for doubtful accounts as a percentage of net sales based on historical bad debt experience and adjust it
for changes in the overall aging of accounts receivable as well as specifically identified customers that
are having difficulty meeting their financial obligations (e.g., bankruptcy, etc.). Historically, there has
not been significant volatility in our bad debt expense due to strict adherence to our credit policy.

Inventory Valuation Reserve

Inventories consist of merchandise held for resale and are stated at the lower of weighted average
cost or market. Management evaluates the need to record adjustments to reduce inventory to net
realizable value on a quarterly basis. The reserve is initially provided for based on a percentage of
sales. Each quarter, items to be liquidated are specifically identified and written-down, using historical
data and reasonable assumptions, to their estimated market value, if less than their cost. Inherent in
the estimates of market value are management’s estimates related to customer demand, technological
and/or market obsolescence, possible alternative uses and uitimate realization of excess inventory.

Sales Returns

We establish a reserve for anticipated sales returns based on historical return rates. The return
rates are periodically analyzed for changes in current return trends. Historically, material adjustments
to the estimated sales reserve have rarely been required based on actual returns. If future returns are
materially different than estimated returns, an adjustment to the sales return reserve may be required.

Reserve for Self-insured Group Health Plan

We have a self-insured group health plan. We are responsible for all covered claims up to a
maximum liability of $300,000 per participant during a September 1 plan year. Benefits paid in excess
of $300,000 are reimbursed to the plan under our stop loss policy. Due to the time lag between the
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time claims are incurred and the time claims are paid by us, a reserve for those claims incurred but not
reported (“IBNR”) is established. The amount of this reserve is reviewed quarterly and is evaluated
based on a historical analysis of claim trends, reporting and processing lag times and medical costs
inflation.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position
(“FSP”) EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Participating Securities.” This FSP provides that unvested share-based payment
awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid)
are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to
the two-class method. The FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those years. Upon adoption, a company is
required to retrospectively adjust its earnings per share data (including any amounts related to interim
periods, summaries of earnings and selected financial data) to conform with the provisions in this FSP.
Early application of this FSP is prohibited. The Company’s unvested restricted stock is considered a
participating security. Therefore, the Company, upon adoption, will calculate earnings per share
pursuant to the two-class method, and restate all prior periods if required. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact this adoption may have on earnings per share, but does not expect it will have a
material impact.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 162,
“The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS No. 162”). SFAS No. 162 is
intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, for
selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. SFAS No. 162 will become effective 60 days
following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU
Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” The Company is currently evaluating the impact this adoption may have on its results of
operations and financial condition, but does not expect it will have a material impact, if any.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible
Assets” (“FSP FAS 142-3”). FSP FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing
renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset
under FASB Statement No.142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. FSP FAS 142-3 also requires
expanded disclosure related to the determination of intangible asset useful lives. FSP FAS 142-3 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this adoption may
have on its resuits of operations and financial condition, but does not expect it will have a material
impact, if any.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 141R”). SFAS No. 141R significantly changes the accounting for business combinations in a
number of areas, including the treatment of contingent consideration, preacquisition contingencies,
transaction costs, in-process research and development and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS
No. 141R, changes in an acquired entity’s deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions after the
measurement period will impact income tax expense. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, This standard will change the Company’s accounting treatment for
business combinations on a prospective basis.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157).
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework and gives guidance regarding the methods used
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for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. In February 2008, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement
No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of
Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13” (“FSP 157-1”) and FASB Staff Position
157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2”). FSP 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to
remove certain leasing transactions from its scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for
all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at
fair vatue in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2008. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The measurement and
disclosure requirements related to financial assets and financial Liabilities are effective beginning the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 157 for financial
assets and financial liabilities will have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations. The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS 157 will have on its results of
operations and financial position when it is applied to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We have a credit facility that consists of a revolving credit line commitment and term loan facility
that expires on June 30, 2011. On February 14, 2008, we increased the revolving credit line
commitment from $75.0 million to $150.0 million of which we had $91.0 million outstanding at
August 30, 2008. The interest rate payable for borrowings under the revolving loans is currently 40
basis points over LIBOR rates. The weighted average borrowing rate in effect for the revolving loans at
August 30, 2008 was 2.86%. We are also charged a fee of 10 basis points on the borrowed and
unborrowed balances of the revolving loans. The loans under the revolving credit line are generally due
in thirty days, although, sixty, ninety and one hundred cighty day increments are available.

At August 30, 2008, we had term loan borrowings outstanding under our credit facility of
$141.7 million. Principal payments on the term loan began in June 2007. The remaining payments
consist of quarterly installments of approgimately $10.3 million in each of the next three quarters
commencing in September 2008, approximately $12.8 million in each of the following four quarters
commencing in June 2009, $20.5 million in each of the following two quarters commencing in June
2010 and a final payment of approximately $18.7 million due in December 2010. Optional prepayments
may be made at any time, or from time to time, in whole or part, without premium or penalty. The
interest rate payable for borrowings under the credit facility is currently 50 basis points over LIBOR
rates. The borrowing rate in effect for the term loan borrowings at August 30, 2008 was 2.99%. Under
the terms of the credit facility, we are subject to various operating and financial covenants, including a
maximum consolidated leverage ratio and a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio. At
August 30, 2008, we were in compliance with the operating and financial covenants of the credit
facility.

In addition, our interest income is most sensitive to changes in the general level of United States
interest rates. In this regard, changes in United States interest rates affect the interest earned on our
cash and cash equivalents. Based on current debt levels, each 50 basis point change in interest rates
would have a corresponding effect on our annual interest expense of approximately $1.2 million as of
August 30, 2008. The Company does not currently use interest rate derivative instruments to manage
exposure to interest rate changes.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of August 30, 2008 and September 1, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended August 30, 2008. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries at August 30,
2008 and September 1, 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended August 30, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 2, 2007 the
Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
No. 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Thxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control
over financial reporting as of August 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated October 23, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Melville, New York
October 23, 2008
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MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents . ....... e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,002 and
$7,139, respectively . ... ... e
INVENMIOTIES . . .ot e e et e e e
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . .......................
Deferred income taxes. . ... ... .. ittt it ie i,

Total current assets . ... vttt e e e
Property, plant and equipment, net .. ... ....... ... . ... oL,
Goodwill . ... ... . e e e e e e e e
Identifiable intangibles, net .. . ... ... .. ... .. i il
L T T

a1 T

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revolvingcredit motes . . . ... .o ittt e
Current maturities of long-term notes payable .....................
Accounts payable . .. .. ... . e
Accrued liabilities . .. ... . i e e

Total current Liabilities . . . . .. ... ...t i i i e
Long-termmotes payable. . ... ... ... e
Deferred income tax liabilities . . . ........ ..o,

Total liabilities . .. ... . i i i e
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock; $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
andoutstanding . . .. ... ... i e e
Class A common stock (one vote per share); $0.001 par value; 100,000,000
shares authorized; 59,320,412 and 58,815,457 shares issued, 43,640,352
and 47,689,925 shares outstanding, respectively . ..................
Class B common stock (ten votes per share); $0.001 par value; 50,000,000
shares authorized; 18,389,874 shares issued and outstanding, respectively .
Additional paid-incapital . ......... ... .. . .. . i i
Retained €armings. . . ... v v v v i it i s it r s
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income .. ...................
Class A treasury stock, at cost, 15,680,060 and 11,125,532 shares, respectively .

Total shareholders’ equity . . ... ..o i e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . .. ........ ... .o L,

An%'u‘:'st't8 30, Sept;&ger 1,
$ 42843 § 7,797
216,407 204,186
320,434 338,366
19,185 20,748
23,807 18,705
622,676 589,802
128,931 127,608
272,143 272,806
62,885 70,832
16,091 14,279
$1,102,726  $1,075,327
$ 91,000 $ _
43,726 33471
54,511 69,579
61,364 70,237
250,601 173,287
98,473 142,200
42,040 31,963
391,114 347,450

59 59

18 18

431,330 408,996
758,347 609,713
(676) 694
(477466)  (291,603)
711,612 721,877
$1,102,726 $1,075,327

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except net income per share data)
For The Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, 2008 September 1, 2007  August 26, 2006
(52 weeks) (53 weeks) (52 weeks)
NET SALES . ... i it ineran e $1,779,841 $1,688,186 $1,317,519
COSTOFGOODSSOLD . .......coinievennnn 957,329 _ 907,697 704,059
Grossprofit ........... ... .. il 822,512 780,489 613,460
OPERATING EXPENSES .. ..... ..., 502,984 489,606 392,594
Income from operations ..................... 319,528 290,883 220,866
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME:
Interest expense . ......... e e (8,376) (12,598) (2,926)
Interest iNCOME. . . ..o v vt v v r it e enien e 649 939 3,559
Otherincome, Det. . .. ..o vt een i ee e enns 1,558 270 271
__(6169) (11,389 94
Income before provision for income taxes ........ 313,359 279,494 221,770
Provision for income taxes. . .........cccueen.. 117,116 105,564 85,381
Netincome .........cvvivrimmeneennnnnnn. $ 196,243 $ 173,930 $ 136,389
PER SHARE INFORMATION:
Net income per common share:
Basic ... iiii i e e $ 3.08 $ 2.64 $ 2.04
Diluted .. ...... ... .. $ 3.04 $ 2.59 $ 2.00
Weighted average shares used in computing net
income per common share:
Basic ...t e 63,743 65,800 66,827
Diluted .. .....coiii i e 64,659 67,057 68,319
|
|

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 30, 2008, SEPTEMBER 1, 2007 AND AUGUST 26, 2006
(In thousands)

For The Fiscal Years Ended

August 30, September 1, August 26,
2008 2007 2006
{52 weeks) (53 weeks) (52 weeks)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net iNCOMmME . - . . o it e e e i e e § 196,243 $ 173,930 $ 136,389
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . .. ... o i e e 27,349 26,031 15,233
Stock-based compensation . . ... ... e e e 10,379 8,173 9,548
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment . . ... .................. (1,619) — —_
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment . . . .. ................ 3 153 —
Gainonsale of securities . . . . ... .o i i e e e - — (769)
Provision for doubtful accounts . . .. ..., ... ... e 2,459 4,800 2,506
Deferred INCOME tAXES . . . . . . v o ottt i e 4,975 (1,765) (2,361}
Amortization of bond premium . . . ... L Lo e e e — — 170
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. . .. ........... ... ... (3,273) (7,689) (8,016)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . .. ... ... e (15,638) (22,813) (24,626}
INVEMEOMIES . . o v . ot it et i et e e e e e 16,991 (39,484) (19,172}
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . ... ...... ... .. . .. 1,485 638 119
Other aSelS - . . . o vt it ittt it i e e (1,874) 2,336 78
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . ... .. ... o oo (18,925) 20,873 24,409
Total adjustments . . . .. vt vt et e e e e 22,312 (8,747) (2,881)
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. .............. ... ...... 218,555 165,183 133,508
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales of investments in available-for-sale securities, .. ......... — — 177,290
Purchases of investments in available-for-sale securities . . . . .............. — — (132,131)
Cash used in business acquisition . . . .. .. ... ... i o e — (12,734) (356,095)
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment . . . .......... ... ... .., (20,839) (26,457) (22,837)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment .. ................. 1,711 — —
Net cash used in investing activities . .. ....... .. .. iy (19,128) (39,191) (333,773)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under credit facility . . .. ...... ... ... o o e — — 205,000
Credit facility financing costS. . . . . .. . .0 o v it i e e e — — (776)
Purchases of treasury stock . . . . . . ... . ... L (187,187) {81,534) (20,839}
Payment of cash dividends . .. ....... ..ot (47,609) (42,298) (36,336)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. . . ... ... oL a0 3,273 7,689 8,016
Proceeds from sale of Class A common stock in connection with associate stock
purchase PIan . . . o oot e e e e e 2,698 2,706 2,352
Proceeds from exercise of Class A common stock options . . .. ............ 7,032 12,596 14,698
Net proceeds under revolving loans from credit facility and promissory note . . . . . 91,000 - —
Repayments of notes payable under the credit facility and other notes . . .. . ... (33,472) (25,158} (5,152)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . ... ................. (164,265) (125,999} 166,963
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . ......... (116) 86 —_
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . .. ..... ... ... ...... 35,046 79 (33,302)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year. . ... .............. 7,797 7,718 41,020
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, endofyear . ... ........c.counun § 42,843 $ 7,797 $ 7,718
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes . ... ...........0iunnnonn § 112,064 $ 102,627 $ 78,328
Cash paid during the year forinterest . . . ... .......... .. ... . ..., $ 8113 § 12,050 $ 20m

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts and shares in thousands, except per share data)

1. BUSINESS

MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the “Company” or
“MSC”) is a distributor of metalworking and maintenance, repair and operations (“MRO”) supplies
with headquarters in Melville, New York and Southfield, Michigan. The Company serves primarily
domestic markets through its distribution network of 97 branch offices and five customer fulfillment
centers located near Harrisburg, Pennsylvania; Elkhart, Indiana; Atlanta, Georgia; Reno, Nevada; and
Wednesbury, United Kingdom. The Company acquired J&L America, Inc., d/bfa J&L Industrial Supply
(“J&L”), a former subsidiary of Kennametal, Inc., during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The J&L
systems and operations have been fully integrated into MSC, and in fiscal 2007 both of J&L’s customer
fulfiliment centers were closed, and their volume has been absorbed into MSC’s existing logistics
network.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MSC and its
subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year is on a 52 or 53 week basis, ending on a Saturday close to August 31.
The financial statements for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 contain activity for 52 weeks, 53 weeks,
and 52 weeks, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks, as well as certain highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company’s mix of receivables is diverse, with approximately 371,000 active customer accounts
at August 30, 2008. The Company sells its products primarily to end-users. The Company’s customers
are primarily concentrated in the United States. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial condition and collateral is generally not required. Receivables are generally due
within 30 days. The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on numerous
factors, including past transaction history with customers and their credit worthiness and provides a
reserve for accounts that are potentially uncollectible.




The Company maintains the majority of its cash and cash equivalents with high quality financial
institutions. Deposits held with banks may exceed insurance limits. These deposits may be redeemed
upon demand and therefore bear minimal risk.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories consist of merchandise held for resale and are stated at the lower of weighted average
cost or market.

Available-For-Sale Securities

During fiscal 2006, ali available-for-sale securities were sold, and a loss of approximately $82 was
realized. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are included as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of any related tax effect. The Company will
recognize an impairment charge if a decline in the fair value of its investments below the cost basis is
judged to be other-than-temporary.

The cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
maturity. Such amortization is included in interest income. Realized gains and losses, interest and
dividends and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale securities are
included in interest income. The cost of securities sold is based on the first-in, first-out method. During
fiscal 2006, the Company invested in a short-term income fund. All holdings were sold in fiscal 2006.
Realized gains of $858 from the sale of this investment are included in interest income.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; costs of major renewals and improvements
are capitalized. At the time property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the asset and accumulated depreciation accounts and the
profit or loss on such disposition is reflected in income.

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment are computed for financial
reporting purposes on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The Company capitalizes certain payroll costs associated with the development of internal
computer systems in accordance with Statement of Position (“SOP”’) 98-1 “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” These costs are included within
property, plant and equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. These costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related computer systems, not
to exceed five years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets
acquired in connection with business acquisitions. Accumulated amortization was $7,286 at August 30,
2008 and September 1, 2007. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” which was adopted by the Company on September 2, 2001, goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually (or more frequently, if
impairment indicators arise) for impairment. Goodwill decreased $663 in fiscal 2008 and increased
$1,154 in fiscal 2007, relating to the J&L acquisition. The Company tests goodwill for impairment as of
the first day of its fiscal fourth quarter using the two-step process prescribed in SFAS No. 142, Based
on the impairment tests performed, there was no impairment of goodwill for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and
2006.
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The components of the Company’s intangible assets, which were acquired pursuant to the J&L
acquisition, for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008 and September 1, 2007 are as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

‘Xiﬁ';‘g‘:‘ August 30, 2008 September 1, 2007

Useful Life  Gross Carrying  Accumulated  Gross Carrying  Accumulated

(in years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer Relationships .. ...... 10 $50,300 $(11,317) $50,300 $(6,287)
Contract Rights . .. ........... 10 23,100 (5,198) 23,100 (2,388)
Website . ................... 2.25 1,040 (1,040) 1,040 (433)
Trademark License Agreement ... Indefinite 6,000 —_ 6,000 —
Total ........covviiviinn, $80,440 $(17,555) $80,440 $(9,608)

Amortization expense of the Company’s intangible assets was $7,947, $7,780, and $1,828 for the
fiscal years ended August 30, 2008, September 1, 2007, and August 26, 2006, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as follows:

Fiscal Year

2000 . L e e e e e $7.340
74 L O N 7,340
74 7,340
7 17 7,340
7.1 7,340

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically evaluates the net realizable value of long-lived assets, including property
and equipment, and deferred catalog costs, relying on a number of factors, including operating results,
business plans, economic projections, and anticipated future cash flows. Impairment is assessed by
evaluating the estimated undiscounted cash flows over the asset’s remaining life. If estimated cash flows
are insufficient to recover the investment, an impairment loss is recognized. No impairment loss was
required to be recorded by the Company during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Deferred Catalog Costs

The costs of producing and distributing the Company’s principal catalogs are deferred ($13,927 and
$12,952 at August 30, 2008 and September 1, 2007, respectively) and included in other assets in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets in accordance with SOP 93-7, “Reporting on Advertising
Costs.” These costs are charged to expense over the period that the catalogs remain the most current
source of sales, which is typically one year or less. The costs associated with brochures and catalog
supplements are charged to expense as distributed. The total amount of advertising costs, net of
co-operative advertising receipts from vendor sponsored programs, included in operating expenses was
approximately $21,369, $22,114 and $17,578 for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008, September 1,
2007 and August 26, 2006, respectively.

The Company, in accordance with Emerging Issue Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No, 02-16,
“Accounting by a Reseller for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor,” records cash consideration
received for advertising costs incurred to sell the vendor’s products as a reduction of the Company’s
advertising costs and is included in operating expenses. Rebates received from vendors related to
volume purchases are recorded as a reduction to the cost of inventory.
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Product Warranties

The Company generally offers a maximum one-year warranty, including parts and labor, for some
of its machinery products. The specific terms and conditions of those warranties vary depending upon
the product sold. The Company may be able to recoup some of these costs through product warranties
it holds with its original equipment manufacturers, which typically range from thirty to ninety days. In
general, many of the Company’s general merchandise products are covered by third party original
equipment manufacturers’ warranties. The Company’s warranty expense has been minimal,

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
reasonably assured. In most cases, these conditions are met when the product is shipped to the
customer or services have been rendered. The Company reports its sales net of the amount of actual
sales returns and the amount of reserves established for anticipated sales returns based upon historical
return rates.

Shipping and Handling Costs

In accordance with EITF Issue 00-10, “Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs,” the
Company includes shipping and handling fees billed to customers in net sales and shipping and
handling costs associated with outbound freight in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. The shipping and handling costs in operating expenses were approximately
$80,017, $75,701, and $60,686 for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008, September 1, 2007 and
August 26, 2006, respectively.

Self-Insurance

The Company has a self-insured group health plan. The Company is responsible for all covered
claims to a maximum liability of $300 per participant during a September 1 plan year. Benefits paid in
excess of $300 are reimbursed to the plan under the Company’s stop loss policy. Group health plan
expense for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $29,934, $30,185, and $25,774, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

On August 28, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123R”) and applied the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 using the modified-prospective transition
method. Under this method, compensation expense is recognized for new grants beginning with fiscal
2006 and any unvested grants prior to the adoption of FAS 123R. The Company recognizes
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the employee’s vesting period or to the employee’s
retirement eligible date, if earlier.

The stock-based compensation expense related to stock option plans and the Associate Stock
Purchase Plan included in operating expenses for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were $6,251,
$5,650 and $7,891, respectively. Tax benefits related to this expense for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal
2006 were $1,968, $1,586 and $1,626, respectively. The tax benefit recorded for the stock-based option
expense is at a lower rate than the Company’s current effective tax rate because a portion of the
options are Incentive Stock Options (“ISO”). In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes,” no tax benefit is recorded for an ISO unless upon
exercise a disqualifying disposition occurs. The Company has not granted any ISO options since March
2004. Instead, the Company has been granting Non-Qualified Stock Options, which allow the tax
benefit to be recorded as options are expensed.
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Stock-based compensation expense recognized for restricted stock awards was $4,128, $2,523 and
$1,657 for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008, September 1, 2007 and August 26, 2006, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

The Company is affiliated with two real estate entities (together, the “Affiliates”). The Affiliates
are owned primarily by two of our principal shareholders (Mitchell Jacobson, cur Chairman, and his
sister Marjorie Gershwind). The Company leases a distribution center located in Atlanta, Georgia from
one Affiliate and leases a branch office in Pawtucket, Rhode Island from the other Affiliate. During
the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company and the landlord negotiated an amendment to the
existing lease on the Atlanta distribution center, with respect to a 172,000 square foot expansion of this
facility. The landlord paid approximately $5,400 for the cost of the expansion. The term of the lease
has been extended to the year 2030. As a result of periodic escalations, monthly payments will range
from approximately $186 to $218 over the term of the lease. All other material terms of the lease
agreement remain unchanged. Based on local market terms and data compiled by an independent real
estate consultant, we believe this transaction to be on arm’s length terms.

The Company recorded a gain in the amount of $1,619 during the fiscal year ended August 30,
2008 on the sale of its 50% interest in certain commercial property. The buyer was the owner of the
remaining 50% interest in the property and is an entity owned and controlled by Mitchell Jacobson and
Marjorie Gershwind. See Note 11 for a discussion of leases with related parties.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short
maturity of these instruments. The fair value of the Company’s debt, the majority of which are carried
at a variable rate of interest, are estimated based on the current rates offered to the Company for
obligations of similar terms and maturities. Under this method, the Company’s fair value of long-term
obligations was not significantly different than the carrying values at August 30, 2008 and September 1,
2007.

Foreign Currency

The effect of exchange rate fluctuations on translation of assets and liabilities is included as a
component of shareholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and losses from
foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated statement of income and have not been
significant.
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Comprehensive Income

The Company complies with the provisions of SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,”
which establishes standards for the reporting of comprehensive income and its components. The
components of comprehensive income, net of tax are as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

August 30, September 1,  August 26,
2008 2007 2006

Net income, asreported . . . ................ $196,243  $173,930  $136,389
Reclassification of unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities, netof tax ....... — —_— 82
Cumulative translation adjustment ........... (1,370} 667 27
Comprehensive income . .................. $194,873  $174,597  $136,498

Website Development Costs

The Company complies with the provisions of EITF Issue 00-02, “Accounting for Web Site
Development Costs.” This standard categorizes certain costs as an internal use of software, which
would be subject to the requirements of SOP 98-1, while other costs would be subject to capitalization
or expense pursuant to SOP 93-7.

Income Taxes

The Company has established deferred income tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting bases and the income tax bases of its assets and liabilities at enacted
tax rates expected to be in effect when such assets or liabilities are realized or settled. On September 2,
2007, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”) which prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement
recognition, measurement, classification, and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. For those benefits to
be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing
authorities. Implementation of FIN 48 resulted in no adjustment to the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits. The gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits, exclusive of interest and penalties, was $5,822
as of August 30, 2008.

Geographic Regions

The Company’s sales and assets are predominantly generated from United States locations. Sales
and assets related to the U.K. branch are not significant to the Company’s total operations, and for
fiscal 2008, J&L U.K. represented less than 3% of the Company’s consolidated net sales. Net sales for
J&L UK. were $45,070 in fiscal 2008 and $36,725 in fiscal 2007.

Segment Reporting

The Company’s results of operations are reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer on a consolidated basis and the Company operates in only one segment.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” This FSP
provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or
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dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the
computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. The FSP is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those
years. Upon adoption, a company is required to retrospectively adjust its earnings per share data
(including any amounts related to interim periods, summaries of earnings and selected financial data)
to conform with the provisions in this FSP. Early application of this FSP is prohibited. The Company’s
unvested restricted stock is considered a participating security. Therefore, the Company, upon adoption,
will calculate earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method, and restate all prior periods if
required. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this adoption may have on earnings per
share, but does not expect it will have a material impact.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 162,
“The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS No. 162”). SFAS No. 162 is
intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, for
selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. SFAS No. 162 will become effective 60 days
following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU
Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” The Company is currently evaluating the impact this adoption may have on its results of
operations and financial condition, but does not expect it will have a material impact, if any.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible
Assets” (“FSP FAS 142-3”). FSP FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing
renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset
under FASB Statement No.142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. FSP FAS 142-3 also requires
expanded disclosure related to the determination of intangible asset useful lives. FSP FAS 142-3 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this adoption may
have on its results of operations and financial condition, but does not expect it will have a material
impact, if any.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 141R”). SFAS No. 141R significantly changes the accounting for business combinations in a
number of areas, including the treatment of contingent consideration, preacquisition contingencies,
transaction costs, in-process research and development and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS
No. 141R, changes in an acquired entity’s deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions after the
measurement period will impact income tax expense. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. This standard will change the Company’s accounting treatment for
business combinations on a prospective basis.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577).
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework and gives guidance regarding the methods used
for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. In February 2008, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement
No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of
Lease Classification or Measur¢ment under Statement 13” (“FSP 157-1”) and FASB Staff Position
157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157" (“FSP 157-2"). FSP 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to
remove certain leasing transactions from its scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SEAS 157 for
all non-financial assets and non-financial Habilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until fiscal vears beginning
after November 15, 2008. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The measurement and
disclosure requirements related to financial assets and financial liabilities are effective beginning the
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first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 157 for financial
assets and financial liabilities will have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations. The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS 157 will have on its results of
operations and financial position when it is applied to non-financiat assets and non-financial liabilities
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity have been
reclassified in order to conform to current year presentation. The Company combined amortization of
restricted stock with share based payment expense and expanded cash dividends paid on common stock
into separate lines for Class A and Class B common stock.

3. ACQUISITION

On June 8, 2006, the Company acquired, through its wholly owned subsidiary, MSC Acquisition
Corp. VI, all of the outstanding common stock of J&L. J&L provided metalworking consumables,
related products and related technical and supply chain-related productivity services to small and
medium-sized manufacturers in the United States and the United Kingdom. J&L also distributed a
broad range of metalcutting tools, abrasives, drills, machine tool accessories, precision measuring tools,
gages, hand tools and other supplies used in metalcutting operations. The Company acquired J&L in
an effort to capitalize on a highly synergistic opportunity which would create significant cross-selling
opportunities across the customer bases of both companies and generate cost reduction opportunities.
In addition, the acquisition provided the Company with increased purchasing power in all areas of the
business. The purchase price for the acquisition was approximately $368,829, which included
post-closing purchase price adjustments and other acquisition related fees. The post-closing purchase
price allocation was as follows:

Total CUTTENE ASSELS . .. . v v v vt i e i e n et e et e i i $ 87,764
Intangible @SSCS . . .. v e e e 80,440
Goodwill , . ... e e e 209,602
Property, plant and equipment, net. .......... ... ... i 7,642
070 (0 g . = . T 2,171
Total liabilities . . . . ... ..o e e (18,790)
Total purchase price. . .. ... iii i e $368,829

The acquisition of J&L was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance
with SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations” (the “Purchase Method”) and accordingly, the acquired
assets and liabilities were recorded at fair values. The total purchase price for the acquisition was
funded by borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility, which was entered into
simultaneously with the acquisition, and the remaining amount was funded from available cash reserves
and the liquidation of investments in available-for-sale securities. In fiscal 2007, the purchase price
allocation was adjusted to reflect final calculations.

4. NET INCOME PER SHARE

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic net income per
common share (“Basic EPS”) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Dituted net income per common share (“Diluted EPS”) is computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive common share
equivalents and convertible securities then outstanding. SFAS No. 128 requires the presentation of both
Basic EPS and Diluted EPS on the face of the consolidated statements of income.
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The following provides a reconciliation of information used in calculating the net income per

common share amounts for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008, September 1, 2007 and August 26,
2006, respectively:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, August 26,
2008 2007 2006

Numerator:

Netincome ............ccovvinuennnnn. $196,243  $173,930  $136,389
Denominator:

Weighted average shares outstanding . . ...... 63,743 65,800 66,827

Effect of dilutive associate stock options ..... 916 1,257 1,492

Adjusted weighted average shares outstanding

for diluted earnings per share .........., 64,659 67,057 68,319

Net income per common share:

Basic........ ..o i $ 308 §$§ 264 § 204

Diluted ......... .0, $ 304 $§ 259 $ 200

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

The following is a summary of property, plant and equipment and the estimated useful lives used
in the computation of depreciation and amortization:

Auvgust 30, September 1,
Number of Years 2008 2007

Land........... ... ..., — $ 11,563 $ 11,600
Building and improvements ......... 40 78,704 78,217
Leasehold improvements ........... The lesser of 3,452 2,591
lease term or 31.5

Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . .. 3-15 92,407 82,404
Automobiles ............ ... ..., 5 359 359
Computer systems, equipment and 35

software . ...... .. . .., 94,973 86,671

281,458 261,842
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization. . .. ............... 152,527 134,234

Total ... $128,931  $127,608

The amount of capitalized interest, net of accumulated amortization, included in property, plant
and equipment was $1,142 and $1,184 at August 30, 2008 and September 1, 2007, respectively.

Depreciation expense was $19,329, $18,080 and $13,360 for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008,
September 1, 2007, and August 26, 2006, respectively.
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6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is comprised of the following:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, August 26,
2008 2006

2007
Current:

Federal .........c0vviiriiennannnnan $ 98820 § 92908 $69,294
Stateand local ........ ... .0 i, 13,321 14,421 13,726
112,141 107,329 83,020

Deferred:
Federal .......... ... ... ... . . .. 4,598 {1,601) 2,090
Stateandlocal ................... .. ... 377 (164) 271
4,975 {1,765) 2,361
Total ..o e e e $117,116  $105,564  $85,381

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

August 30, September 1,
2008 2007

Current and non-current deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation. .. ........c.oireiiurvnnnerraneeann $(24,826)  $(20,496)
Deferred catalog costs . . . .. ... ... i (3,696) (3,429)
Goodwill ........ ... .. e (13,518) (8,038)

(42,040)  (31,963)

Current and non-current deferred tax assets:

Accounts receivable . . .. ... ... . e e 1,606 2,029
INventory . ... ...ttt 5,324 4,988
Deferred compensation . ............ .. 00 i 1,717 712
Stock based compensation .. .......... ... . ... 6,806 4,608
Intangible amortization .............. ... .. 2,106 1,322
L0 11,7 A 6,248 5,046
23,807 18,705
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities ... ..................... $(18,233)  $(13,258)

Reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as
follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
August 30, September 1, August 26,
2008 2007 2006

U.S. Federal statutoryrate . ................ 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit . . . . .. 29 36 4.4
Other,met . ... ... ... itiiiinnaan. (0.5) (0.8) 0.9
Effective income taxrate .................. 37.4% 37.8% 38.5%

On September 2, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48 which prescribes a comprehensive model for
the financial statement recognition, measurement, classification, and disclosure of uncertain tax
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positions. Implementation of FIN 48 resulted in no adjustment to the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits, As of the date of adoption, the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits, exclusive of
interest and penaltics, totaled $5,021.

The aggregate changes in the balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits during fiscal 2008 were as
follows:

Balance as of September 2,2007 . ...... ... ... ... .. ... $5,021
Additions for tax positions relating to current year .. ................. 1,722
Additions for tax positions relating to prioryears . ................... 629
Reductions for tax positions relating to prioryears .. ................. (599)
Settlements . ... ......... . (400)
Lapse of statute of limitations . . .......... ... ... . . i iiiinann. (551)
Balance as of August 30,2008 ... ... ... .. i $5,822

With limited exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to Federal income tax examinations
through 2005 and State jurisdictions through fiscal 2004. Currently, the Company is under Federal
examination for fiscal 2006.

The Company recognizes interest expense and penalties in the provision for income taxes. The
current year provision includes interest and penalties of $73. The Company had $408 for interest and
penalties accrued as of August 30, 2008.

7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Angust 30, September 1,

2008 2007
Accrued payroll, bonus and fringe . . .................. $32,390 $38,921
Accrued advertising ........... ... ... .., 5,220 4,798
Accrued sales, property and income taxes .............. 7,461 11,338
Accruedother(l) ......... ..o i 16,293 15,180
Total accrued liabilities . ............ ... . oo, $61,364 $70,237

(1) This amount includes exit costs related to the closure of the J&L customer fulfillment
centers and employee severance costs for the fiscal years ended August 30, 2008 and
September 1, 2007 as follows:

Severance
Exit Costs Costs Total
Beginning Balance at September 1,2007 .......... $ 1,522 $752 §$2274
Change in estimates/settlements. . .. ........... — (663) (663)
Payments .. ..........o0iiiiiiiniennennn. (1,020) 79 (1,099
Ending Balance at August 30,2008 . ............. $ 502 § 10 § 512
Severance
Exit Costs Costs Total
Beginning Balance at August 26,2006 ............ $2900 $1279 34179
Change in estimates/settlements. . ............. (1,378) 256 (1,122)
Payments . .......... ... ... .. . ... — (783) (783)
Ending Balance at September 1,2007 ............ $1,522 § 752 $2274
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The change in estimates is the result of additional information related to the final determination of
fair value of the underlying assets or liabilities.

8. LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

Long-term notes payable consist of the following:

August 30,  September 1,

2008 2007
Revolving credit agreement(1). ...................... $ 91,000 % —
Credit facility(1) . . .. ... ... i e 141,688 175,000
Term notes payable(2) .......... ... ... .. i, 511 671

233,199 175,671

Less: current maturities . . .. oo v v v e v e e i e e r s niv e 134,726 33,471

$ 98,473  $142,200

(1

2

The Company has a credit facility that consists of a revolving credit line commitment and
term loan facility which expires on June 30, 2011. On February 14, 2008, the Company
increased the revolving credit line commitment from $75,000 to $150,000, of which the
Company had $91,000 outstanding at August 30, 2008. The interest rate payable for
borrowings under the revolving loans is currently 40 basis points over LIBOR rates. The
weighted average borrowing rate in effect for the revolving loans at August 30, 2008 was
2.86%. The Company is also charged a fee of 10 basis points on the borrowed and
unborrowed balances of the revolving loans. The loans under the revolving credit line are
generally due in thirty days, although, sixty, ninety and one hundred eighty day
increments are available.

At August 30, 2008, the Company had term loan borrowings outstanding under our credit
facility of $141,688. Principal payments on the term loan began in June 2007. The
remaining payments consist of quarterly installments of $10,250 in each of the next three
quarters commencing in September 2008, $12,813 in cach of the following four quarters
commencing in June 2009, $20,500 in each of the following two quarters commencing in
June 2010 and a final payment of $18,686 due in December 2010. Optional prepayments
may be made at any time, or from time to time, in whole or part, without premium or
penalty. The interest rate payable for borrowings under the credit facility is currently 50
basis points over LIBOR rates. The borrowing rate in effect for the term loan borrowings
at August 30, 2008 was 2.99%. Under the terms of the credit facility, the Company is
subject to various operating and financial covenants, including a maximum consolidated
leverage ratio and a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio. At August 30, 2008,
the Company was in compliance with the operating and financial covenants of the credit
facility.

On February 7, 2008, the Company issued a Promissory Note (the “Note™), effective as of
January 17, 2008. Pursuant to the Note, the Company was able to borrow from the
lender, in the lender’s sole discretion, up to $50,000. Subject to certain exceptions, the
interest rate for any loans made pursuant to the Note was calculated, at the Company’s
option, at (a) the prime rate as publicly announced by the lender from time to time, (b) a
fixed rate of interest determined by the lender in its sole discretion or (c) the adjusted
LIBOR rate plus 40 basis points. During the second quarter, the Company borrowed and
repaid $30,000 under the Note. The Note terminated on March 11, 2008. The primary
purpose of this borrowing was to provide temporary access to funding until our revolving
credit line commitment under our credit facility was extended to $150,000.

The term notes payable consist of notes payable to the Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority which are secured by the land on which the Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania customer fulfillment center is located. This note bears interest at 3% per
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annum payable in monthly installments of approximately $15 (including principal and
interest) through September 2011.

Maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year

4 $134,726
7 L 59,109
1. 1 1 39,350
7. 1 14

9, CAPITAL STOCK AND DIVIDENDS
Treasury Stock Purchases

During fiscal 1999, the Board of Directors established the MSC stock repurchase plan (the
“Plan”), and the total number of shares of Class A common stock initially authorized for future
repurchase was set at 5,000 shares. In June 2005 and January 2008, the Board of Directors reaffirmed
and replenished the Plan. As of August 30, 2008, the maximum number of shares that may yet be
repurchased under the Plan was 3,006 shares. The Plan allows the Company to repurchase shares at
any time and in any increments it deems appropriate in accordance with Rule 10b-18 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. During fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, the Company
repurchased 4,620 shares and 1,807 shares, respectively, of its Class A common stock for $187,164 and
$75,224, respectively, which is reflected at cost as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

The Company reissued approximately 66 and 70 shares of treasury stock during fiscal 2008 and
fiscal 2007, respectively, to fund the Associate Stock Purchase Plan (Note 10).

Common Stock

Each holder of the Company’s Class A common stock is entitled to one vote for each share held
of record on the applicable record date on all matters presented to a vote of sharcholders, including
the election of directors. The holders of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share on
the applicable record date and are entitled to vote, together with the holders of the Class A common
stock, on all matters which are subject to shareholder approval. Holders of Class A common stock and
Class B common stock have no cumulative voting rights or preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe
for any stock or other securities and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions with respect to
such stock.

The holders of the Company’s Class B common stock have the right to convert their shares of
Class B common stock into shares of Class A common stock at their election and on a one-to-one
basis, and all shares of Class B common stock convert into shares of Class A common stock on a one
to-one basis upon the sale or transfer of such shares of Class B common stock to any person who is
not a member of the Jacobson or Gershwind families or any trust not established principally for
members of the Jacobson or Gershwind families or is not an executor, administrator or personal
representative of an estate of a member of the Jacobson or Gershwind families.

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 5,000 shares of preferred stock. The Company’s Board of Directors
has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock. Shares of preferred stock have priority over the
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Company’s Class A common stock and Class B common stock with respect to dividend or liquidation
rights, or both. As of August 30, 2008, there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Cash Dividend

On July 10, 2003, the Board of Directors instituted a policy of regular quarterly cash dividends to
shareholders. This policy is reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

On October 16, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.20 per share
payable on November 13, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of business on October 30, 2008.
The dividend of $0.20 per share will result in a quarterly payout of approximately $12,449, based on the
number of shares outstanding at October 24, 2008.

10. ASSOCIATE BENEFIT PLANS
Stock Compensation Plans
2005 Omnibus Equity Plan

The Company’s 2005 Omnibus Equity Plan covers 3,000 shares in the aggregate, and is in lieu of
and replaced the unissued shares not covered by previous grants made under the previous plans, for an
aggregate of approximately 500 fewer shares than were covered under the previous plans. Existing
awards under the previous plans continue to vest in accordance with the original vesting schedule and

will expire at the end of their original term.

Stock Options

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options at August 30, 2008, September 1, 2007
and August 26, 2006 and changes during the years then ended is presented in the table and narrative

below:

Outstanding—beginning of year . . .........
Granted
Exercised. ... ... ..o,
Cancelled/forfeited . . . ................

Outstanding—end of year

..........................

Exercisable—end of year . ...............
Weighted average fair value of options granted .

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
2,574  $25.57 2,931  $20.57 3625 $17.80
502 47.68 459 42.62 395 37.76
(385) 1828  (776) 1624  (926) 1591
@7 4032 (40) 3480  (163) 27.16
2,644 30.56 2,574 25.57 2,931 20.57
1,523 22.29 1,529 18.29 1,719 15.92

$13.18 $14.09 $10.52

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008,
September 1, 2007 and August 26, 2006 was $10,739, $26,092, and $26,347, respectively. As of
August 30, 2008, the total intrinsic value of options exercisable was $43,625, and the total intrinsic value
of options outstanding was $53,858. The unrecognized share-based compensation cost related to stock
option expense at August 30, 2008 was $9,081 and will be recognized over a weighted average of

2.52 years.
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

Expected life (years) . . . ...... ... ... .. 4.8 48 4.7
Risk-free interestrate . . .. ................ it n. 41% 47% 31%
Volatility ... ... e 285% 33.2% 302%
Dividendyield . ... ... ... . . . i, 1.40% 1.20% 1.20%
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at August 30, 2008:
Weighted Number of Weighted
Number of Average Weighted Options Average Weighted
Options Remaining Average Exercisable Remaining Average
Outstanding at  Contractual Exercise at August 30, Contractual  Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices August 30, 2008 Life Price 2008 Life Price
$7.75-81163 ... ......... 89 1.1 $ 7.78 89 1.1 $ 778
11.64-1746 .. ............ 715 28 14.38 715 2.8 14.38
17472621 .............. 343 5.0 23.11 242 5.0 22.98
26223933 . ... L. 602 39 3519 356 38 34.48
39344821 ... ... 395 5.6 45.50 121 5.0 42.44
2,644 42 $30.56 1,523 35 $22.29

Restricted Stock (Unvested Stock)

A summary of the activity of restricted stock under the Company’s 1995 Restricted Stock Plan and
2005 Omnibus Equity Plan for the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008 is as follows:

Weighted Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding on September 1,2007 .......... ... ... ... 390 $40.49
Granted . .. ... e 146 47.61
Vested ... . e (64) 33.20
Forfeited/Canceled . .......... ... ... ... . i .. (26) 3198
Qutstanding on August 30,2008 . ....... ... .. 0iiirinieninns 446 $44.36

The fair value of shares vested during the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008 and September 1,
2007 was $2,540 and $782, respectively.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested restricted shares at August 30, 2008 is
$12,260 and will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.17 years.

Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has established a qualified Associate Stock Purchase Plan, the terms of which allow
for qualified associates (as defined in the Associate Stock Purchase Plan) to participate in the purchase
of up to a maximum of 5 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at a price equal to 90% of
the closing price at the end of each stock purchase period. On January 4, 2005, shareholders of the
Company approved a 300 share increase to the Associate Stock Purchase Plan. As of August 30, 2008,
approximately 109 shares remain reserved for issuance under this plan. Associates purchased
approximately 66 and 70 shares of common stock during fiscal 2008 and 2007 at an average per share
price of $40.82 and $38.40, respectively.
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Savings Flan

The Company maintains a defined contribution plan with both a profit sharing feature and a
401(k) feature which covers all associates who have completed at least one month of service with the
Company. For fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company contributed $3,819, $3,102 and $2,092,
respectively, to the plan. The Company contributions are discretionary.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

Certain of the operations of the Company are conducted on leased premises, two of which are
leased from entities affiliated with Mitchell Jacobson, the Company’s Chairman, and Marjorie
Gershwind, Mr. Jacobson’s sister. The leases (most of which require the Company to provide for the
payment of rcal estate taxes, insurance and other operating costs) are for varying periods, the longest
extending to the year 2030. In addition, the Company is obligated under certain equipment and
automobile operating leases, which expire on varying dates through 2012. At August 30, 2008,
approximate minimum annual rentals on such leases are as follows:

Total

(Including

Related Party  Retated Party
Fiscal Year Commitments) Commitments
2000 ... e e $13,877 $ 2,301
2000 ... e e 11,468 2,208
200 L e e e 9,140 2,239
2002 L e e e s 6,449 2,258
200 e e i 4,962 2,293
Therealter . .. ..ot e e e e 46,031 41,358
Total ... .. e e $91,927 $52,747

Total rental expense (exclusive of real estate taxes, insurance and other operating costs) for all
operating leases for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $9,386, $9,712 and $6,495,
respectively, including approximately $1,885, $1,748 and $1,734, respectively, paid to related parties.
The increase in the operating lease expense for fiscal 2007 is primarily due to the branches and
customer fulfiliment centers acquired as part of the J&L acquisition in fiscal 2006.

The Company sold its 50% interest in a property that was owned with an affiliated real estate
entity during fiscal 2008 to that affiliated real estate entity. The affiliated real estate entity is owned
primarily by two of the Company’s principal shareholders, Mitchell Jacobson, the Company’s Chairman,
and his sister Marjorie Gershwind. The premises were leased to a third party. The Company’s portion
of the total rental income for this lease for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was approximately $146, $141,
and $137, respectively.

In the opinion of the Company’s management, the leases with related parties are on terms which
approximate fair market value.

12, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims, lawsuits, and pending actions against the Company and its subsidiaries
incident to the operations of its businesses in the ordinary course, In addition, as a government
contractor, from time to time the Company is also subject to governmental or regulatory inquiries or
audits, including a current inquiry relating to the Trade Agreements Act compliance. A claim against
the Company arising from this inquiry has not been made and the amount of potential liability, if any,
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is not estimable at this time. However, in the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of all
such claims, lawsuits, pending actions and inquiries will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

On November 15, 2007, a purported shareholder derivative action, captioned Plymouth County
Retirement Association v. Schroeder et. al. (the “Litigation”), was filed in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of New York (the “Court”), on the Company’s behalf, against the
Company as nominal defendant, the Company’s Board of Directors and certain of the Company’s
current and former directors and officers. The plaintiff derivatively claims violations of Sections 10(b)
and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, as well as
breach of fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment in connection with certain
stock options granted from 1997 to 2001. The plaintiff secks unspecified damages, disgorgement of
stock options and any proceeds received from the exercise of misdated stock options, an accounting of
stock option grants and costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses. On February 1, 2008, the
Company and the individually named defendants filed motions to dismiss the Litigation. By
memorandum and order dated September 5, 2008, the Court granted in part and denied in part those
motions. By agreement of the parties, proceedings in the Litigation are currently stayed. Based on the
allegations in the complaint, the Company believes the plaintiff’s claims are without merit.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under
the Exchange Act) as of August 30, 2008. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of August 30, 2008, such disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is (i) recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of the Company’s management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of August 30, 2008. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework.

Based on this assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of August 30, 2008.

Attestation Repont of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of August 30, 2008
has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in
their report which appears in this Item under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred
during the quarter ended August 30, 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, its internal controls over financial reporting.




-

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc.

We have audited MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal
control over financial reporting as of August 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of August 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of August 30,
2008 and September 1, 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 30, 2008 of the Company and
our report dated October 23, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Melville, New York
October 23, 2008
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ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART II.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information called for by Item 10 is set forth under the headings “Election of Directors” and
“Corporate Governance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of shareholders to
be held in January 2009, or the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information called for by Item 11 is set forth under the headings “Executive Compensation”,
“Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the
2008 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information called for by Item 12 is set forth under the headings “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners” and “Security Ownership of Management” in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by this reference. See also the information under the heading “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” in Part I, Item 5 of this Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.,

Information called for by Item 13 is set forth under the heading “Certain Relationships and
Related Person Transactions” and “Corporate Governance” in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Information called for by Item 14 is set forth under the heading “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Auditors” in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
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PART IV.
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES,
(2)(1) Index to Financial Statements

Financial statements filed as a part of this report are listed on the “Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements” at page 38 herein.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules
For the three fiscal years ended August 30, 2008.

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. .......................... S-1
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . . .. ...... .. ot S-2

All other schedules have been omitted because the information is not applicable or is presented in
the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibits are filed with this report or incorporated by reference to the Exhibit Index immediately
preceding the exhibits attached to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of August 30, 2008 and September 1, 2007 and for each of the three years in the period
ended August 30, 2008 and have issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2008 (included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K). Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in Item 15(a) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This schedule is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information
set forth therein.

s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Melville, New York
October 23, 2008
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MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
| SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
| (In thousands)

Balance st Charged to  Charged to
Beginning  Costs and Other

Balance at

Description of Year Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Year

Deducted from asset accounts:
For the fiscal year ended August 26, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts(1) . ... .. $2,547 $2,506 $1,482(3)

$1,621(2) $4,914

Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets.  $3,386 $ — $ —

$ 269 $3,117

Deducted from asset accounts:
For the fiscal year ended September 1, 2007
Allowance for doubiful accounts(1) .. .. .. $4,914 $4,800 3 —

$2,575(2) $7,139

Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets.  $3,117 $ — $ —

$3,117(4) § —

Deducted from asset accounts:
For the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts(1) ... ... $7,139 $2,459 $ —

$3,596(2) $6,002

(1) Included in accounts receivable.
(2) Comprised of uncollected accounts charged against the allowance.

(3) Amount related to the acquisition of J&L.

(4) Reclassification of valuation allowance.
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.01

*3.01
3.02

*4.01
10.01

10.02

10.03

*10.04
10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

Stock Purchase Agreement by and among JLK Direct Distribution, Inc., Kennametal Inc.,
MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and MSC Acquisition Corp. VI dated as of March 15, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on March 16, 2006).

Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant.

Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 18, 2007).

Specimen Class A Common Stock Certificate.

Registrant’s 1995 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on January 6, 2004, filed with the
Commission on December 5, 2003).1

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 1995 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on January 6, 2004, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003).}

Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s 1995 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on January 4, 2005, filed with the Commission on December 3, 2004).¢

Registrant’s 1995 Stock Option Plan.t

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 6, 2004, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003).1

Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 2, 2007, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2006).F

Registrant’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on January 1,
1998, filed with the Commission on December 5, 1997).1

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 8, 1999, filed with the Commission on December 8, 1998).1

Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 7, 2000, filed with the Commission on December 8, 1999).%

Amendment No. 3 to the Registrant’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 6, 2004, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003).t

Amendment No. 4 to the Registrant’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 2, 2007, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2006).1
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Registrant’s 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharcholders held on January 4,
2002, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2001).1

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 6, 2004, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003).F .

Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
January 2, 2007, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2006).1

Registrant’s Associate Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on January 8,
1999, filed with the Commission on December 8, 1998).%

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Associate Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on January 6, 2004, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003).t

Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Associate Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on January 4, 2005, filed with the Commission on December 3, 2004).}

Amendment No. 3 to the Registrant’s Associate Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended August 26, 2006, filed November 9, 2006).7

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2000, between the Registrant and Charles
Boehlke (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.06 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 26, 2000, filed on November 14, 2000).}

Agreement, dated as of January 8, 1999, between the Registrant and James Schroeder
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the Commission on November 19, 1999).1

Agreement, dated as of January 8, 1999, between the Registrant and David Sandler
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the Commission on November 19, 1999).1

Summary of MSC Industrial Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration
No. 117514), as amended).t

2005 Omnibus Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on January 3, 2006 filed with the Commission
on December 2, 2005).1

Amended and Restated Agreement by and between the Registrant and David Sandler,
dated as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5,
2006).1
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

1033

10.34

10.35

10.36

Amended and Restated Agreement by and between the Registrant and Charles A. Boehlke,
Jr., dated as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January §,
2006).t

Amended and Restated Agreement by and between the Registrant and James Schroeder,
dated as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5,
2006).1

Amended and Restated Agreement by and between the Registrant and Shelley Boxer,
dated as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5,
2006).t

Aimended and Restated Agreement by and between the Registrant and Thomas Eccleston,
dated as'of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5,
2006).1

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Thomas Cox, dated as of
December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5, 2006).t

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Erik David Gershwind,
dated as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5,
2006).1

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Eileen McGuire, dated
as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5, 2006).}

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Douglas E. Jones, dated
as of December 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on January 5, 2006).7

Credit Agreement among the Registrant, as Borrow;er, Bank of America, N.A., HSBC Bank
USA, NLA. and Sovereign Bank as co-documentation agents, Citibank, N.A., as syndication
agent and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, dated as of June 8, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on June 13, 2006). )

Severance Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2006, by and between Ross Anker and the
Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on April 6, 2006).F '

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 14, 2006, between J&L America, Inc. (DBA
J&L Industrial Supply) and Michael Wessner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on July 6,
2006).1

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Charles Bonomo, dated
as of July 31, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on October 31, 2007).1
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.37

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Agreement to Terminate Split-Dollar Agreements, dated October 18, 2007, by and among
Sid Tool Co., Inc., Mitchell Jacobson and Erik Gershwind as trustee of the Mitchell
Jacobson 1994 Insurance Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 23, 2007).1

Agreement to Terminate Split-Dollar Agreement, dated October 18, 2007, by and among
Sid Tool Co., Inc., Mitchell Jacobson and Kathy Howard Jacobson and Erik Gershwind as
trustees of the Mitchell Jacobson 1991 Insurance Trust (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
October 23, 2007).1

Promissory Note, dated as of January 17, 2008, by the Registrant, as borrower, to the order
of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, as lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8K filed with the SEC on February 13, 2008).

First Amendment, dated as of February 14, 2008, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of
June 8, 2006, among the Registrant, as Borrower, the several banks and other financial
institutions or entities from time to time parties to the Credit Agreement, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A., HSBC Bank USA, N.A. and
Sovereign Bank, as co-documentation agents and Citibank, N.A., as syndication agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on February 20, 2008).

Agreement of Lease, dated as of July 13, 1989, by and between Mitchmar Atlanta
Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7, 2008).

First Amendment to Lease, dated as of August 10, 1996, by and between Mitchmar Atlanta
Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7, 2008).

Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of May 7, 2003, by and between Mitchmar Atlanta
Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7, 2008).

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated as of November 11, 2003, by and between
Mitchmar Atlanta Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7,
2008).

Fourth Amendment of Lease Agreement, dated as of March 17, 2007, by and between
Mitchmar Atlanta Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7,
2008).

Fifth Amendment of Lease Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2008, by and between
Mitchmar Atlanta Properties, Inc. and Sid Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7,
2008).

Contract of Sale, dated as of August 28, 2008, between Esco Management Corp. and Sid
Tool Co., Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 3, 2008).
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Exhibit No.

Description

1047

21.01
23.01
311

312

321

322

Change in Control Agreement by and between the Registrant and Steve Armstrong, dated
as of October 16, 2008.**

List of Subsidiaries.**
Consent of Emst & Youﬂg LLP**

Chief Executive Officer’s Certificate, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

Chief Financial Officer’s Certificate, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,**

*  Filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration Statement
No. 33-98832, as amended.

** TFiled herewith.

Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 21.01
SUBSIDIARIES OF MSC INDUSTRIAL DIRECT CO., INC,

STATE OF
CORPORATION INCORPORATION
SId Tool €O, INC. vttt i ot et e e New York
Primeline International, Inc. . ... .. .. . s New York
Kaja Productions, Inc. ... ... ..o New York
Cut-Rite Tool COTP. . ..ot i it it ettt ee s Florida
DTC Tool COTP. ..ttt it ettt Florida
Brooks Precision Supply, Inc. .. .. ... . e Massachusetts
MSC Services COIP. ..ottt e i e e New York
Anderson Industrial Supply, Inc. ........ ... .. Florida
Dolin Supply, Inc. . ... ... New York
Discount Tool and Supply Company .. ........ .ottt New York
Drake-Atwood Tool & Supply Company, Inc. . ............ ... i, Tennessee
J&S Tool Company, Inc. . ... ... . i Tennessee
Holloway Bros. Tools, Inc. ... ... ... . i et Delaware
RMG COTPOTation . . . .o v vttt ie ettt a e Wisconsin
Industrial Specialty Company Incorporated .. ... ......... ... . ociiion, Mississippi
Industrial Specialty Company, Inc. of Tupelo . . . ....... ... . it Mississippi
Corbin COTPOTALION . . .t v e it e i e a e m i Ohio
MSC Direct Line, INC. . . ... .ottt i i i it New York
Swiss Precision Instruments, INC. .. . . oo v ottt i s California
Enco Manufacturing Co., Inc. . ... ... i New York
MSC Acquisition Corp IIL . ... ... i New York
MSC Acquisition Corp IV ... ... o New York
MSC Acquisition Corp V . . ..o i New York
Corbin Acquisition COrporation . ... .........c.uevrnenecrnrentanronmnnns Ohio
Corbin Integrated Services . . . ... ..o ittt e Ohio
J&L America, INC. .. .. i e e e e Michigan
MSC Acquisition Corp VI .. . ... i e New York
MSC Contract Management, Inc. ......... ... .0 i New York

MSC Foreign Properties Corporation . ..............uiriniinraraneannn. Delaware




EXHIBIT 23.01

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8
No0.33-03256, No0.33-46273, No.33-48901, N0.33-84124, No.33-70293, and No.33-130899) pertaining to
the 1995 Stock Option Plan, 1998 Stock Option Plan, MSC Industrial Direct 401(k) Plan, 2001 Stock
Option Plan, Associate Stock Purchase Plan and the 2005 Omnibus Equity Plan of MSC Industrial
Direct Co., Inc, and Subsidiaries, respectively, and (Form $-3 No.33-31837, Form S-3 No.33-110357 and
Form S-3 N0.33-117514) of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries in the related
Prospectuses of our reports dated October 23, 2008, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements and schedule of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc, and Subsidiaries, included
in this Annval Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended August 30, 2008.

" s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Melville, New York
October 23, 2008




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, David Sandler, certify that:

1.
2,

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc,;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
g \ p
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 28, 2008

/s/ DAVID SANDLER

David Sandler
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Charles Boehlke, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting {(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: QOctober 28, 2008

/s/ CHARLES BOEHLKE

Charles Boehlke
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION %06
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. (the
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David Sandler, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 28, 2008

/s/ DAVID SANDLER

David Sandler
President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to MSC
Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and will be retained by it and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc. (the
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended August 30, 2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Charles Boehlke, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: October 28, 2008

/s/ CHARLES BOEHLKE
Charles Boehlke

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to MSC
Industrial Direct Co., Inc. and will be retained by it and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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